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>>Committee commenced at 8:52

Chairman (Mr. Hickes): Good morning,
everyone. We will get this proceeding
started. We will start off with Mr. Enook, if
you could lead us in prayer for the day.
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Thank you.
>>Prayer

Chairman: Like | said, good morning,
everyone. Everyone has a copy of the
agenda. Are there any questions? | see none.
I’'m going to proceed directly into my
opening statement.

Before proceeding, | would like to ask
Members, witnesses, and visitors to put their
cellphones and other electronic devices on
silent mode, please.

I would like to formally welcome everyone
present to this meeting of the Legislative
Assembly’s Standing Committee on
Oversight of Government Operations and
Public Accounts. We are meeting today on
the occasion of our Committee’s hearing on
the 2012-13 Annual Report and the 2014-18
Corporate Plan of the Qulliq Energy
Corporation.

I would like to first introduce my
Committee colleagues:

Tony Akoak, Member for Gjoa Haven;

Pat Angnakak, Member for Niagunnguu;

Joe Enook, Member for Tununig;

David Joanasie, Member for South Baffin;

Steve Mapsalak, Member for Aivilik;

Simeon Mikkungwak, Member for Baker
Lake;

Samuel Nugingaq, Member for Uggummiut;

Allan Rumbolt, Member for Hudson Bay;

Alexander Sammurtok, Member for Rankin
Inlet South;

Joe Savikataag, Member for Arviat South;
and

Unfortunately Mr. Isaac Shooyook, Member
for Quittiktuq, is not able to attend these
proceedings.

Today’s hearing constitutes the first time
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that the Qulliq Energy Corporation has been
asked to publicly account to elected MLAs
in detail for its proposed expenditures and
activities.

As one of Nunavut’s major Crown
corporations, the Qullig Energy Corporation
plays a significant role in our territory’s
economy and the day-to-day lives of our
constituents.

QEC’s current corporate plan anticipates
that it will raise over $135 million in
revenue during the 2014-15 fiscal year and
spend over $113 million on fuel and other
operating expenses. The Qulliq Energy
Corporation has approximately 200
positions in Nunavut’s 25 communities.

However, the Qullig Energy Corporation
differs from the government’s departments
and other public agencies in that its annual
budget is not appropriated by the Legislative
Assembly through the main estimates and
capital estimates approval process.

Nonetheless, as our territory’s publicly
owned utility, it is incumbent on the
corporation to account to Nunavummiut
through the elected Members of the
Legislative Assembly on its plans and
performance.

Consequently, today’s hearing will provide
an opportunity for Members of the Standing
Committee to address a number of
important themes and issues that have
emerged concerning the Qullig Energy
Corporation’s operations. These include:

e The governance framework for the
Qullig Energy Corporation. As a
territorial corporation, QEC operates
under a complex governance framework.
Today’s hearing will allow Members to
explore the strengths and weaknesses of
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the current accountability relationship
between QEC’s management, its board
of directors, the Minister responsible for
the Qulliq Energy Corporation, the
Public Agencies Council, the Financial
Management Board, and the Legislative
Assembly itself.

The transparency and timeliness of
public reporting of QEC’s contracting,
procurement and leasing activities. An
annual report on QEC’s contracting,
procurement and leasing activities has
not been tabled in the Legislative
Assembly since February of 2011, over
three years ago.

The application of the government’s
NNI Policy to QEC’s contracting,
procurement and leasing activities.
Although QEC spends tens of millions
of dollars each year on goods and
services, the issue of whether the
government’s NNI Policy does or should
apply to QEC remains outstanding.

QEC’s capital planning process. In the
response to its 2013-14 ministerial letter
of expectation, the Qulliq Energy
Corporation indicated that although
“there is an immediate need to replace
17 power plants in the next decade,” it
also indicated that “the limited customer
base in Nunavut cannot bear this capital
cost on its own.” The corporation’s
2012-13 annual report indicated that it
was “in the process of securing
additional borrowing of $74.0 million to
fund capital expenditures over a three-
year period from 2013 to 2015.”

QEC’s next steps in preparing for phase
2 of its general rate application. QEC’s
current corporate plan indicates that one
of its priorities for the 2016-17 fiscal
year is to “perform Phase II of the
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General Rate Application that provides
several cost of service study options and
establishes appropriate rates classes.”

e Also the relationship between QEC and
the Government of Nunavut’s Energy
Secretariat, including QEC’s role in
implementing the government’s energy
strategy, administrating the Affordable
Energy Fund, decreasing reliance on
fossil fuels, and moving forward
towards greater use of alternative energy
sources, including hydroelectric and
wind power.

e QEC’s success in clarifying
responsibility for environmental clean-
up liabilities involving sites and
infrastructure that were inherited from
the federal Northern Canada Power
Commission.

In keeping with parliamentary practice, the
Standing Committee anticipates reporting its
findings and recommendations to the
Legislative Assembly during the upcoming
fall sitting. Under Rule 91(5) of the Rules of
the Legislative Assembly, the government
will be required to table a formal response
to our report within 120 days of its
presentation.

I would like to quickly address some
housekeeping matters. For the benefit of our
recording system, | would ask witnesses to
wait until | invite you to proceed before
activating your microphone, and | would ask
witnesses to always go through the Chair
when responding to Members’ questions
and comments.

| would also note that Members of the
Standing Committee have a number of
reports and documents in their possession
for use during this hearing. All of these
items are in the public domain. However,
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for ease of reference when posing questions
to witnesses, | would ask my colleagues to
be precise when citing specific pages or
sections of the documents to which they are
referring.

With that, | again welcome everyone to our
hearing and invite the Qulliq Energy
Corporation’s lead witness to make his
opening statement. Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good
morning, Mr. Chairman and Members. |
would like to begin by echoing the
comments made by Member Angnakak in
the Standing Committee’s news release
shortly after Labour Day. It is important that
Members have the opportunity to scrutinize
the spending of public agencies, ask
questions regarding corporate priorities of
those public agencies, and to obtain an
understanding of what has been achieved by
those public agencies. This includes the
Qullig Energy Corporation, which, to date,
has not had the opportunity to appear in this
House.

In years gone by, there have been questions
raised both in this Assembly and in the
general public about spending by the
corporation and its business practices. Some
of the decisions made by the corporation
may have been the right choices.
Conversely, there may have been bad
choices too. Without the ability to ask
questions of the corporation in this House
and to hold the corporation to account, there
has been speculation on the part of the
general public and likely Members too on
the corporation’s conduct.

Standing Committee appearances provide a
forum for witnesses to clarify matters of
interest and for Standing Committees to
make recommendations to improve the
performance of government entities.
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Having been a past board member of public
agencies, such as Nunavut Arctic College
and the Labour Standards Board, |
understand the importance of accountability,
transparency, and integrity. These are
important cornerstones in the public’s faith
in the Government of Nunavut’s ability to
make sound financial decisions and that of
its public agencies.

In the corporation’s vision statement, we
expressly state that “we operate as an
enterprise with transparency, accountability,
and integrity.” It is my responsibility as
president of the corporation to lead by
example and uphold this vision statement.

The public and Members in this House must
have confidence that public funds or, in the
case of the corporation, customers’ monies
are spent prudently. They must also know
that government entities are managed
properly and that benefits have been
properly approved before being conferred to
employees of government entities or others.

| welcome this opportunity to appear in
front of the Standing Committee to discuss
all aspects of the corporation’s activities.
Like any government entity, we have not
been perfect, but we are working on
improving our deficiencies.

The corporation, as a government entity, is
relatively small in size, with about 200
employees, and has annual operating
revenues of $133 million.

I’ll just get off my opening comments
slightly here.

Mr. Chairman, the Chairman indicated that
it was $135 million. There’s a bit of a
difference between how the URRC accounts
our revenue and how we actually do it for
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public statement purposes, so that’s why
there’s a slight difference of $2 million, if
people are wondering.

However, the corporation has a daily impact
on the lives of Nunavummiut. It is for this
reason that it is important for both Members
and the general public to understand what it
takes for the corporation to fulfill its mission
statement, which is to provide safe, reliable,
and efficient electricity and plan long-term
affordable energy for Nunavummiut.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my opening
comments. | would be pleased to answer
questions that Members may have. Thank
you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. As we
don’t really have a structure as we’re
following two concurrent documents at the
same time [’m going to go directly into
questions. We’ll start off with Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Good morning, people of
Nunavut. Good morning and welcome to
our proceedings. Welcome, Mr. Ma. | have
a question on your opening comments. With
the Qulliq Energy Corporation, we were not
happy at some times and asked various
questions regarding the operations of the
Qullig Energy Corporation. There were
even talks about mismanagement at one
point.

My question, Mr. Chairman, and | do know
that you have just been appointed recently:
what was the hardest issue that you had to
deal with since you were appointed to the
president’s position with the Qulliq Energy
Corporation? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Member Enook asked a good question, so
I’'m going to give him two answers because
I think they’re kind of the hardest thing or
there are probably two things | had to deal
with right away.

One was when | was appointed, we were
just starting the general rate application
process and that’s important for the
corporation in terms of its revenue. That
was a bit of a challenge to get up to speed
and move that process along.

| think the second thing is changing the way
that we do business as a corporation, not to
say that we were doing things badly, but |
think there’s room for improvement. I think
that | have been there for about nine months
now. | think that in those nine months, we
have made progress and made the most
improvements.

Badly or good, I’ve had three different
departments to manage and the one thing |
could say as a deputy head is that after you
have been there for a while, maybe it’s just
time to move on and do other things because
you get a fresh look and this fresh blood.
Hopefully I bring some fresh blood into the
corporation in terms of how we do some
things. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I didn’t expect to get here so quick.
Welcome, Mr. Ma, to the House.

I think that with my line of questioning, I’'m
going to go more into the governance of
things just to have a brief discussion about
that. Perhaps to start off, what guidelines
does the board of directors follow to ensure
that the public interests and needs are being
met? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
that the appointment of my new board
members recently by the Minister and one
of the remaining members, Mr. George
Hickes Sr., I think, are good moves.

I think that it’s important to have board
members who are from the territory or know
the territory. Some of our current board
members reside elsewhere, but they have
certainly lived in the north and understand
the conditions here in Nunavut. First and
foremost, I think it’s important to have an
understanding and they are certainly
dedicated to it because it impacts them as
well, not to say that the previous board was
not mindful of that. I think it’s just different
when you hear and you know what’s going
on. | think you’re more aware of things and
| think that certainly helps.

The board itself, to answer your question
more directly, has a number of board of
governance policies. We’re actually going
to Cambridge Bay next week. We will leave
here Monday and we’re going to expand
upon those board of governance policies. In
fact, there are two consecutive workshops
that we will have in Cambridge Bay. The
first part for three days would deal with
board of governance and I think that that
would really help the board come together
as a board and as a team.

The one thing that I would say that’s a little
bit different in this retreat, if you will, is that
we will have the senior management team as
well there. I think it’s important that the
board and the staff understand the respective
roles and learn to work with each other and
have that... . There’s an English word, I
think, synergy. I think we need to have that
and I think we’re starting to build that.
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The second part of the board retreat will be
work on strategic planning. I’'m sure that
there will be questions today, but the current
strategic plan expires this current fiscal year,
so we need to start planning for the next
three years. | think that there are some
things in place, but certainly there is room
for improvement. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for the good answer. What
strategy or strategic direction has the board
of directors of QEC laid out to ensure
efficiency and effective operations? | know
you just mentioned that you’re going to be
going through a workshop to determine
maybe what some of these strategic
directions should be, but do you have
something in your mind already in which
direction the Qullig Energy Corporation
should be going? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So in
the current strategic plan the first goal is to
approve overall operating efficiency and the
effect of the delivery of energy through and
have engineering and operating practices.
So what does that mean? Its fine to say all
that, so what we are essentially trying to do
is examine the ways to utilize the existing
costs better so we have better fuel
efficiency, look at different models as we
look to upgrade or replace plants, maybe
different types of engines, different ways of
doing things. We are also looking affordable
energy that and | am sure there will be
questions around that as well.

So, it’s the whole program from start to
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finish from the time we take generator set to
the time we actually retire the generator set.
All the things we can do in there like
preventative maintenance, regular
preventive maintenance, all those types of
things. I know right now, we’ve have had a
number of discussions with a number of
suppliers, we may change the way we do
some things, we are looking at different
ways, early days, but I think we are open to
some different things then maybe what we
have done in the past. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Earlier my colleague asked you the question
what has been one of your biggest
challenges. | know you are a very intelligent
man Mr. Ma, but dealing with these kinds of
areas must be new to you. Has that been
another challenge that you have had to
overcome? Thank you, Mr. Chairman

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes
absolutely, I’'m an accountant by
background, I am not engineer, so the
engineer folks and the operation folks have
been very kind to me as | get up to speed. |
have always said that as a deputy head, it
takes you probably six months to a year to
really understand that particular department
or public agency that you are now heading,
and | am actually kind of excited because as
this point its been about nine months, and |
think | have a pretty good understanding of
the things, and | am really looking forward
to next week in terms of the board retreat. |
think it’s an opportunity for us to really
move forward with some things. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
During the last sitting | asked your minister
a couple of questions about QEC and each
and every time the power went off
afterwards. So I hope that doesn’t happen
today!

>>| aughter

Getting around to my next question; | am
covering around governance really and how
the corporation is run. What do you feel are
the principle risks of the corporation, and
what systems do you have in place to
manage them? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak. Mr.
Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So we
actually just did a bit of a quick risk
assessment of the corporation, it’s a general
kind of thing where we looked at things like
operating, political, reliability factors and
environmental things.

| think one of the things that concern me is
the age of our infrastructure; | think the
chairman mentioned in his comments that
seventeen of our plants need to be replaced.
There is some good news; we are currently
working on the Taloyoak and Qikigtarjuaq
power plant replacements in the current
year. We expect to have those done next
year. That is a concern for us, getting our
infrastructure replaced and, of course, the
challenge is financing. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your answer. When we are
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dealing with such big items like new power
plants |1 am sure that presents a lot of
challenges in many areas. Can you tell me in
what way is the corporation accountable to
the public? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There
are a number of ways that we account to the
public. One of the ways is through
legislation. Through the general rate
application, the Utility Rates Review
Council has the opportunity to review our
applications and ask questions. I think by
and large there have been really good
questions by the URRC. While we don’t
always agree with them, I think it’s a good
process to go through and they are certainly
independent of us.

I think what’s happening here today is great.
| think this probably honestly should have
happened a long time ago, in my view. So |
think this is a good practice to get into.

Obviously, we as the management team are
accountable to our board. The board in turn
is accountable to the minister. And then the
minister comes back into the House and he’s
accountable to the Regular Members and his
cabinet colleagues as well.

| think there are a number of steps in place. |
think maybe what’s been lacking in the past
is this particular forum to have Members ask
direct questions of the corporation’s
officials and the way that they run their
business affairs. Thank you, Mr.
Chairperson.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your answer. Do you feel that
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the public feels that the corporation has been
accountable to them? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Good question. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairperson.
Yeah, she’s really putting me on the spot,
Member Angnakak. I’'m going to have to
talk to her later after this. No, I’'m kidding.

No, it’s a fair question and it’s a good
question. | would say from the comments |
heard before going to QEC and certainly in
the last nine months, the general view and
I’'m not speaking to the people I meet in the
public, is perhaps the corporation in the past
has not been accountable as it should be and
I think that’s partly why I mentioned
accountability, transparency and integrity in
my opening comments. | think those are
important cornerstones of any government
entity.

Hopefully under my tenure it’s improving
and it will continue to improve. Certainly
that is one of our goals is to be a little more
accountable, do more public
communication. To some extent we’ve been
our own worst enemy. We don’t get out in
the public very much because there are
some good things that we do. We just don’t
talk about it very much. Those are some of
the things | hope to change under my tenure
at QEC. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That’s good to hear. That’s the way it needs
to go. QEC has just gone through the
process of implementing a new board of
directors and there is a lot of discussion
throughout Nunavut about the problems
raised by the last board. Everybody
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resigned, it was in the news.

How will the new board of directors and
management, yourself, deal with problems
should they arise between the board of
directors and yourself as management or
between the board of directors, management
and government? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairperson. In
my view, it always gets down to
communication. Much like this forum. If we
don’t have a dialogue there may be
misconceptions or misunderstandings, not
through anybody’s fault just the fact that
there’s not regular contact.

A couple of things with the current board
and myself, | think before | got there there
was not a regular monthly teleconference.
We have what we call monthly recurrent
teleconference. That started | believe in
July. I’ve had three of those with my board.
In keeps us in regular contact, if there are
issues, they can talk to me. If they’re not
happy they can also have that conversation.

Most of the board members stay in regular
contact as best we can. Either through phone
calls or emails. The other thing is that | have
a regular weekly meeting with my minister
as well, Minister Okalik. That’s important
because | have to be able to bridge the
minister and the board and my management
team. That is a bit of a challenge because
everybody has their own perspective on
things and ’'m moving us forward with a
common goal.

The other thing that our minister has done
too is that he has, I think, at least had two
meetings with the board to discuss their

role. When we’re in Cambridge Bay next
week, I believe it’s on the Thursday, he’s
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going to be up as well to discuss the current
year’s letter of expectation with them at that
point in time. The board will also discuss
their response to his letter of expectation.

I think it’s important to have a dialogue.
When you don’t have that, I think that’s
when you have challenges. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thanks for the answer. It’s good to hear
again. How will the corporation or yourself
or the government measure the effectiveness
of the new board of directors? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
Member Angnakak has stolen my notes for
the board retreat. That actually is one of the
things that we’re going to discuss with
them. They themselves have to think about
how well they perform as a board as a
whole, how they perform as a board
individually, and this is probably getting
ahead of some of your questions, but we
also have a number of committees and also
the chairpersons of those committees also
have to think about how well they’re
performing as a board.

Obviously, the Minister will have his
comments as well in terms of performance
one way or the other, but I think that they
have to regulate themselves and the intent of
next week is to look at ways of how they
can always improve as a board and be
better. Quite honestly, I have a range of
board members from people who are very
experienced and very good as a result of that
to people, really, this is their first board
appointment, and so they’re learning and
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trying to get comfortable.

Hopefully, amongst the board themselves,
they have sort of a mentor-peer type of
relation, just like we do sometimes with the
management team. You help someone who
is a little less experienced and pair them up
with someone who is a little bit more
experienced. | really think that this board
will really work together and hold
themselves accountable to each other.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your answer. It leads me to
my next question. How comfortable are you
to approach a board member or the board if
you feel strongly that one or more of them
are going down the wrong path or perhaps
in your mind, if you feel that they might be
creating some controversy? How
comfortable are you in speaking with your
board about that? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | would
say that I’'m pretty comfortable. By and
large, | know all of these board members
from other things that | have been involved
with in the past, with the exception of
maybe two board members. I haven’t really
known them, but certainly, at this point,
we’re getting along really well. Regardless
of how comfortable or not comfortable I am,
if such a situation arises, it is my duty as the
president and the CEO to approach the
chairperson or the applicable person to
discuss those types of things.

I should say that we also have an ethics and
values committee and that’s comprised,
actually, of board members and staff.
There’s also the opportunity for our staff to
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raise issues and vice versa. There is that
venue there. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your answer. Just going on a
little bit, how do you develop the
corporation’s strategic plans? You're
probably going to pose some different
options or priorities to the board and then
there will probably be discussions, but can
you elaborate on how you’re going about
doing the seven strategic plans? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | really
think Member Angnakak has stolen my
notes for the board retreat next week.

The process that we’re embarking upon for
the strategic planning part of our retreat is
that we have, at this point, a number of
committees; the finance and audit
committee, the alternative energy
committee, the human resources committee,
and the governance and policy committee.

Each one, with chairpersons along with their
staff resource person, is to develop a
presentation of maybe five to ten minutes.
In that presentation, they are to talk about
some of the accomplishments of the past
year or several years. They are also then to
talk about some of the strengths that we
have within those areas where the
corporation is wholly independent in how
they want to look at it. They’re also to
discuss some of the weaknesses that we
have. We’re also going to look at some of
the opportunities.

The way the workshop is structured is that
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it’s an open forum so everybody can
participate. It will be facilitated by a
facilitator. Hopefully, at the end of three
days, we have some common ground on
what those strategic goals could be. Then
the next stage, establish second round and
really flush it out a little bit. I’d be very
happy next week to at least lay the
groundwork and then go from there.

I don’t want the management team to
prejudice the view of the board. I think the
board, themselves, have to come up with
their thoughts. I think most of them have
gone through at least two in-person board
meetings. We’ve had orientation for them as
well. So think they should reasonably
comfortable at this point and understand the
operations of the corporation, and really
participate in the board strategic planning
process. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I thank you for that answer. I’'m assuming
that whatever strategic plans you come up
with will be consistent with the priorities
and the mandate of the organization and
that.

Just to go on. When you come up with
strategic plans, I’m expecting that the
government would have to be on side.
Would that come through letters of
expectations as well for the corporation as a
whole? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It
certainly could come through a letter of
expectation. The minister also has the
prerogative under the Qullig Energy
Corporation to also issue other directives. |
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can’t remember the section off the top of my
head, but I think it’s Section 5 of the Qulliq
Energy Corporation Act. So even if he
issues a letter of expectation, he could also
issue additional directives through, I think
it’s Section 5 but I’ll have to check later. So
there is that opportunity. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
When we talk about strategic initiatives,
such as building power plants somewhere,
you would probably need sign off from the
government. Can you explain how that
process would work? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. One if
the steps in the accountability process with
the government is that all of our operating
and maintenance budgets and our capital
budgets have to be approved by the
Financial Management Board.

Typically, the practice has been to bring the
O&M budgets and the capital budgets to the
Financial Management Board late in the fall.
Probably what we would do is we have the
next in-person board meeting, likely in late
October or early November. At that point,
we would bring it to the Financial
Management Board, hopefully, before the
last FMB meeting before Christmas. So that
would be the process. Certainly, government
can ask us to change things, not approve
certain things, or approve the budgets in
their entirety. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.
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Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, Mr. Ma. My next question: what
types of operational performance measures
does the corporation have in place? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On the
operational side, we have a number of
measures. I'll just give some examples. One
of the things you’ll see in our annual report
is reliability. I’m just going by off the top of
my head, | can actually check it briefly, but
I think it’s around 99.74 percent for the
current year, or its right around there. That’s
not the entire picture.

We look at other things like how often we
have power outages by plant and how long
those power outages last. By and large, the
industry standard is to report every outage
over a minute. So we do that. With our
board, | think anything over ten minutes we
report to the board. At every meeting they
get a report and we explain what happened.
Again, that’s pretty much an industry
standard.

This is a recent practice by the corporation.
This started actually in the 2012-13 fiscal
year. We’re only two years into this part of
it. I think it’s an important operational
indicator and measurement to have to see
how we’re doing. Like I said, it’s by plant,
and it’s done overall as well. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that answer. It leads me to
my next question. Have you ever tabled the
performance measures in the House before?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairperson. To
my knowledge, no. Like I said, it’s probably
because we’re in early days. The first year
that we actually did this was 2012-13. |
think the last tabled annual report in this
House was the 2012-13 annual report. The
minister will be tabling the 2013-14 annual
report.

Having said all that, you raise a good point
and it’s certainly something we could
consider because that is one of the things
that we want to do under my tenure-ship,
anyways, is improve the annual report.

If you look at our annual report, it’s a bit
skimpy probably, quite honestly. We are
working on ways to improve that. We
started down that process. Unfortunately, a
very good communications manager that we
had that we hired has gone on to some other
things, but that is the plan to improve upon
our reporting. There’s no question that it can
be better.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that. Yes, I think it would be
a very good idea to also table that because |
think as we go along more and more the
public are interested. They want to know
what’s going on in the corporation. When
you have instances of rising cost, there’s the
other side. What are you doing to ensure
that you’re doing the best in your
organization to keep the costs down?

Mr. Ma, how and whom are the board of
directors accountable and answerable to?
And to what degree are the board of
directors able to influence, I’'m going to ask
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two questions right away and then you can
influence the hiring and firing and
compensation of the president? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairperson. |
would say first and foremost, as | said
earlier, the board is accountable to each
other and to themselves as a board as a
whole. So that’s number one. Through the
Qulliq Energy Corporation Act they’re also
accountable to the minister since he
appoints them. It’s also the minister who
can revoke their appointments.

| think your second question was the
compensation of the president.

Under the Qulliq Energy Corporation Act,
the board can make a recommendation to
the minister to appoint or not appoint the
president. I’ll be very clear. The president
and the minister can accept that or not.
There’s a second provision in the Qullig
Energy Corporation Act specific to the
CEO, under the Qullig Energy Corporation
Act it can either be the chairperson of the
board or the president. Past practice has
been that the CEO is also the president but it
doesn’t necessarily have to be so. Same with
the remuneration of the president, it also has
to be recommended to the minister. Again,
the minister could also not accept that or
accept it as well.

Just in the interest of public disclosure, I’'m
an overpaid president and the reason | say
that is that within the GN’s deputy-head
salary grid the position that I’'m in now was
rated lower than the position | was in at
health but of course they red-circled me in
coming over. Just so you know that. Just so
when you ask the question to get the
salaries, you already know that. Thank you,
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Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that. I’'m actually going to
something else now. I’'m going to your
Qullig Energy Corporation corporate plan
2014-18. I’'m on page 8, 2.5 environmental.
This sparked my interest about that QEC has
inventoried its sites for environmental
issues. I’'m wondering if you can tell us
exactly how many sites under the
responsibility of QEC have contamination
issues. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Sorry just bear with me here. That
one I don’t have on the top of my head.
Maybe just a bit of background I’ll just give
some background and it may actually
deflect some of the questions later for you.
You probably noticed in our corporate plan
that we talk about under the health, safety
and environment part of it, that we do a
number of environmental elimination
studies this year so that is the process we
started in 2010. And the point of that was to
get a sense of what some of the possible
contamination issues are within each one of
our locations.

Just by way of background, in the current
year we are doing four of these studies in
Resolute Bay, Arctic Bay, Grise Fiord and
Baker Lake. So at this point, | would say the
majority of them have some sort estimated
environmental liability, and they range from
very small amounts, maybe a few hundred
thousand, to pretty large amounts of, maybe
say six or seven million dollars. So it is a
concern.

This may be a question that comes up later
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so | may as address it now as well. So, there
is a new public standards accounting board
standard for government entities that just
came into effect after April 1 of this year, so
the current fiscal year. Government entities
now are required to assess in more detail
their environmental liabilities and to put
some numbers behind that. So this was
raised during our discussion with the Office
of the Auditor General, during his
presentation to the board meeting in June.

| know the Government of Nunavut also is
working on this as well. I think at this point
we are probably further ahead then they are;
we are basically done this kind of work.
You are probably going to ask me for a
number, but | would prefer at this point not
to give you a number because | want us to
kind of finish it and see what it looks like.
But | can say that, at this point, like most
governments | think that the value of the
potential environment liability is probably
significant and that most governments
probably do not plan for that | would say
that was probably the case of all the
governments, including the Government of
Canada. I don’t remember the number off-
hand, but in a recent report | read, | think its
something like six times more than what the
Government of Canada thinks it really is, is
somebody’s best estimate.

Having said all this, one of the things too
that somebody has mentioned here, is that
we of course are the successor corporation
to something called the Northern Canada
Power Corporation. So there is a principle
the government has espoused, and certainly
QEC has taken the same position, and that is
the polluter pays principle. Again, these are
the kinds of discussions that if we ever had
to remediate a site we would have to some
discussion with the federal government on.
There is one current example of this, and
that’s Baker Lake, and I think the Member
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from Baker Lake is probably aware of that,
and | think that happened in 2008 and we
are still trying to open the door a little bit
with AANDC, to have that discussion.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
And thank you for that answer, which leads
me to my next question. Which sites are the
most contaminated? Where in Nunavut do
we have the most contaminated sites? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just a
point of clarification, do you mean by
individual communities or by region?
Individual communities, ok.

Chairman: Sorry, Mr. Ma?

Mr. Ma: Sorry Mr. Chairman, my
apologies. | am going to pick the top two or
three: Baker Lake, Whale Cove, Igaluit a
little bit, and Taloyoak. Those are the four,
the top four. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your answer. The
communities that have contamination
issues; have you met with the community,
the hamlet and all that? | am assuming you
probably have, but I will ask the question
anyhow. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | can

only answer that question partially. I know
that we have had some discussion because
of the new power plant going up in
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Taloyoak with the community there. | am
not sure that they at this point understand
the full extent of what is happening but we
certainly have had that discussion. | cannot
speak to the other three communities that |

outlined earlier at this point. Thank you, Mr.

Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’m going on to something else now. [ was
interested in reading about your load
growth. I saw in the back here you have
some new power plants coming up over the
next few years. Who and how do you go
about deciding that a community needs a
new power plant? How do you prioritize,
because | think most of the power plants are
pretty old? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes,
you’re right. The majority of the power
plants are pretty dated. We’re actually in the
process right now re-examining our whole
capital planning and reporting process.
We’re going to report back to the board by
the end of this month. We may have the
opportunity next week in Baker Lake to, at
least, have that preliminary discussion.
Certainly, at the fall in-person board
meeting we’ll have a more comprehensive
discussion on that.

| think at this point we look at the risk
factors, such as the age of the equipment,
how often maybe that plant has failed or not
failed in the last little while in terms of
power operations. We look at things that we
can perhaps deal with in the short term like
emergency gen. sets, maybe replacing one
of the current gen. sets, maybe different
preventative maintenance. So there are a
number of factors that we can look at.
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One of the things | think we would probably
want to is make this a little bit more rigid, in
terms of the kinds of things that we would
look at. Certainly load would be some of the
considerations in terms of whether to
replace an existing power plant or not.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
| thank you for your answer. When | think
about new power plants, it makes me think
about how expensive things are. We have a
mine currently in place, and we have a
couple starting up over the next few years.
What kind of conversations have transpired
with mining companies to date between
QEC and the mining companies? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We’ve
had some preliminary discussions with some
mining companies in terms of opportunities.
You’'re right, if there is an opportunity to
partner with some mining companies, it’s
both good for industry and for us. I think
maybe the challenge sometimes is the
location of these mines, because quite often
they’re some distance away from a
particular community. It doesn’t mean that
we not explore opportunities. Certainly,
we’ve initiated that process of exploring
some opportunities with mining companies.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My next question, we talked about mines,

but in your corporate plan on page 10 it also
talks about military requirements for energy
will be monitored. My same question; what
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kinds of discussions are taking place with
the military in regard to sovereignty
projects? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As
recently as probably about two weeks ago
our officials were in Cambridge Bay to
discuss with the federal officials there about
the Canadian High Arctic Research Station.
That is a concern for me and for the
corporation.

As that research station comes on stream
and they increase their staff housing needs,
and whatever other needs that they have, it
could put a strain on the situation on
Cambridge Bay, and then we may have to
re-prioritize other capital projects. We’re
going to see how it works out at this point in
time. Like I say, we’re in the early days of
having some discussions with them in that
regard. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’'m going onto something else again. How
many on-the-job learning employees do you
presently have in place? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me
quickly check. Off the top of my head, |
think three apprentices. | just want to make
sure that I’'m not lying to the Member here.
Yes, that’s correct. We still have apprentices
that are complete the programs. Just by way
of note, we’ve graduated five apprentices so
far. Thank you, Mr. Chairperson.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.
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Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thanks for that answer. | was really
impressed actually with the program that
you have in place, reading your corporate
plans and seeing how you do things in some
of the other reports that you have. How
many of these are in self-directed Inuit
employment plans? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Sorry. Thank you, Mr.
Chairperson. Could you explain or define
what self-directed means? Sorry. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Just reading in your corporate plan, it talks
about self-directed Inuit plans somewhere in
here. | read your corporate plan and I write
my questions beside it. In their Inuit
employment, | guess with their training and
that. It states here that you have, page 10,
it’s right in there. ’'m just trying to find it
here. Okay. Here we go. Self-directed, it
says, “Inuit employment development plans
are designed to be self-directed with support
from the employee’s manager.” So ’'m
wondering how many Inuit are actually on
these plans? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Does that clarify it,
Mr. Ma?

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me
just get to that note. Of course the note
would have to have the percentage and not
the number. Sorry, here it is; 33 are in career
development plans and self-directed
learning.

If I may, at this point maybe I’1l just talk
about the Nunavut Leadership Development
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Program. It’s on page 10 and it’s the very
first one under section 2.9. I think that is
something that’s a little bit unique to QEC
from the rest of the government. It’s a
program that was developed to support
people going to post-secondary.

As all members probably know, most
government entities are really good at the
low end of the six occupational areas but the
three areas that we’re really focused on here
and | think government is starting to focus a
little bit more on is professional, middle
management and maybe senior
management. [ don’t remember exactly but I
can check.

This program was designed for people that
are going to post-secondary. While there is
funding through FANS the Financial
Assistance for Nunavut Students program,
this supplements that. | think at this point
we have four beneficiaries at this point that
are going through different programs. Two
of them are in bachelor of administration
programs, working towards their accounting
designations. I think there’s another one in
bachelor of administration working towards
a human resources degree. I think the fourth
is actually working on an engineering
degree.

Those are important things because we
don’t have enough Inuit or beneficiaries in
these types of professional occupations. |
think it’s important to support this. It’s
certainly a worthwhile endeavour. | think as
the Government of Nunavut develops its
human resource strategy for the public
service, | think it will perhaps look at this
model a little bit as well. Certainly this is an
area where I think we’re ahead of the rest of
the government. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Ms.
Angnakak.
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Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, Mr. Ma. | agree with you. | was
quite impressed reading this. The process
that you have in place.

Summer employment has come up as
questions in the House before and I’m sure
QEC also participates for summer
employment positions for students, since
we’re on the topic of learning and students.
How do you advertise, are you part of the
government advertisement or are you
separate? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Prior to
this year, we were separate from the GN. In
recent months, I think I’'m going to have to
guess a little bit here, but probably in about
February, we made a change to be part of
the GN’s website and their recruitment
advertising. I think it’s important that people
realize that we are part of government and
we are a government entity. It also helps us
expand our opportunities to recruit
individuals.

Specific to your question of summer
students, | may have this wrong and I can
certainly correct it later, but I think this
year, we had nine summer students. What
we do is we advertise throughout the
organization to see if any department or area
would have a need for summer students. A
couple of these summer students were, of
course, they’re students I just spoke about
that are going post secondary, as part of the
Inuit leadership development program, we
also make sure they have summer
employment relevant to their future field of
occupation.

For example, here in lgaluit this year, we
had a young man here who was working at
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Finance, so he worked with our regulatory
individual here to work on budgets, cleaning
up some of the stuff from the general rate
application process, and hopefully that was
a good learning process for him. You’re not
going to get that kind of hands-on
experience elsewhere and really, I think it
helps you grow into a professional. That’s a
very similar model that we used when | was
at the Department of Finance.

We supported both beneficiaries and non-
beneficiaries through summer employment.
Many of those individuals, after they got
their graduate degree, stayed on with the
department, although I must admit now that
some of them have gone on to other
organizations, but you know what? Kudos
for them. We have to develop our own
home-grown people regardless of whether
they’re beneficiaries or not. I think it’s
important that we do that rather than always
bringing up people like me who are
southerners. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. You have
been here for some time, so | will consider
you a transplanted northerner.

>>| aughter
Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that answer. I’'m going on to
something totally different. Being an MLA
from Iqaluit, ’'m interested in finding out
more about the hydroelectric development
project that QEC is interested in doing. In
your corporate plan here, it talks about this
on page 14. It says here that “substantial
funding is required to define the basic
parameters of the project...” Can you tell us
where you’re at with this finding funding? If
you can give a brief overview of the status
of this project. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Ms. Angnakak. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, |
think it’s good to probably give some

background to all Members. I may have the
dates wrong, so I’'m going to by Assembly.

In the Second Assembly, there was direction
from the Minister of Energy at that point to
QEC to examine possible hydroelectricity
sites and that work commenced back then.
They did a number of studies in terms of
hydrology, which is measuring water levels,
impacts to the environment in terms of
wildlife, plants, impact to traditional hunting
areas. There was quite an extensive
consultation process with the community
here and | believe Kimmirut as well.

To date, we have spent about $9.5 million
doing these types of studies. To go to the
next stage, to get it to an environmental
assessment stage, we’re probably going to
have to spend another $6.5 million. So that
would mean that we’ve got about $16
million all in before we even start anything
and before we even get regulatory approval.

Depending on the site, to build a
hydroelectricity site can range anywhere,
let’s say, from $300 million to $400 million
and it could be even higher than that. At this
point, we have been looking for other
partners to help us finance this particular
project. | think that in one of your questions,
you indicated whether we have spoken to
mining companies. One of the companies
that we spoke to was a mining company.
We’ve had some initial conversations.
They’re interested. Our timelines don’t quite
mesh, but we will have to see.

If the project does take off, | think one
possibility for financing is a P3 type
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arrangement. We have, obviously, financing
constraints. We don’t have a whole lot of
cash on hand. Also part of our other
constraint is that under the Qulliq Energy
Corporation Act we’re only allowed to have
debt equity ratio of three to one. So that will
probably impinge upon that debt equity
ratio.

All of our debt, of course, are guaranteed by
the Government of Nunavut. They have
their own debt wall cap restrictions as well.
P3 is one possible way to do this. We’ve
had some initial conversations with private
businesses here. Quite frankly, it’s Inuit
organizations. I’m sure you can read
between the lines and figure out who that is.

Also, the Government of Nunavut has got
the Igaluit Airport Improvement Project
here, and that was through P3 Canada. So
that also is a possibility. There are some
possibilities. There are also some hurdles
that go with this and some challenges. It
doesn’t mean that we stop. | think we have
to try to keep this going. I think this was
high on the mind of the board of directors,
because one of the first committees that they
formed was the alternative energy
committee. It’s unique in a sense that the
whole board sits on the alternative energy
committee. So it’s sort of like a committee
of the whole, so to speak.

For the Igaluit Hydro Project part of it, |
think it’s four of the members. I can’t
remember exactly who sit on that sub-
committee. Hopefully, that gives some
background. I certainly would be happy to
answer any other questions on the hydro
project for you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for that explanation. The other

Db IbNMCCT®ILYG HAD>C JC>A™®
DLGeCndenro® Dby o®<e A<
LRLAC A*LAACTb*LoN® NabNsbbeCHLC
L‘ipbb"-d—Q-O—Qb C/\qbc'qu‘ianb
<PEbNbTC® oNe.

CAL LcL*LJC o DRJD®

AP HIP* M <C YD abhC

AP ¢_SeDab, CAPILICCH> YDC
PLSbNCP>SHECHIa® A*TLLC.
D>SbSbNSbSbeCH/LL<®IIC Do/ >N
CLo ASboy*gDa®.

PP<do AN tl*UC DPPa P<sbsedds e <L
LRLEJC MCCACDLLC A*LAACS*LEHNP
>d<, baCP< LRLA®, 0a 2 LRLA® <>
AL AS5NE <o AP SeD5ehShC AYLLC
A *odC AN ODob. P/<lo CAL®q CCP>Se
D>bIHCP>HC PY<o. bNLADC CAL*a
NP/ PLLC CALADC ARG o,
DLLINCNNGE o bNLAIC o®.

Asbo*o Cta. AALPYDSHCD< 5o dbdc
TN se P dNcnotdc. A, AtLSb

>Nebe oYL P<C YD IS0/ GLPIPN >,
sdytal® Ab/QDCS,

Ab/RPCSe (DhpbdO): Sdbeql®, N *q b
Q%@ bse (DhAbdO): Sdbeal® AbI/RPCS, A,

CAL®a. PDLAC sd¥*al™ AALMbC>Ld

36




thing that comes to mind is the two different
sites. Can you give us a breakdown of how
you go about deciding which site you’re
going to go to and maybe that’s already
been decided. I’'m not sure. Can you
elaborate on that, please? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. I’ve had a number
of constituents ask that very same question.
Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At this
point, there has been no decision made with
respect to the two sites. One of the sites is
Jaynes Inlet. I am going to try to pronounce
the Inuktitut name, it’s Qikirrijaarvik. The
other one is Armshow South and that’s
Turngagtalik. I think what we have to look
at is how reliable the water flow is, the
distance from the community, impact on
wildlife and traditional hunting grounds.
Both of these sites I’ve been to before.
They’re beautiful sites. I know people camp
there and go there quite a bit in the spring
and summer.

One of the sites impacts the Kimmirut Trail,
as well. Those are things that we have to
consider. We’ve had some discussion with
the local HTOs both here and Kimmirut. |
know quietly some people have indicated
their support for the hydro project.
Certainly, it’s going to be like the liquor
issue. You’ve got both sides of the coin
where there is people that will support it,
and people that will not support it.

| think at some point, we have to look at
some type of alternative energy. It just
seems a feasible alternative. The capital
costs are initially high, but it’s a long-life
type of project where you don’t have to
replace them for 100 years. Certainly, that
changes your economics for sure. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your answer. My next
question is you indicate that QEC has
spoken with the HTO about this. What kind
of feedback did you get from them? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
one of the things that’s important to note is
in the discussions and consultations with the
HTOs, we’ve made a point of having a point
person in the past to work on this file. His
name is Jamie Flaherty, who is the vice
president of the corporation. I think it really
helps having a person that can speak both
English and Inuktitut, and himself, he is also
a hunter and he can relate to the HTO
people, who are obviously hunters as well.
So I think that’s an important aspect of it.

| think initially we had pretty good feedback
from the HTOs. | may have my dates
wrong, but I thinking around 2012-13 there
was some second round discussions. I think
we got some negative feedback. I think the
reason for the negative feedback is that we
didn’t have our materials translated. We
didn’t have Jamie around at the time. He
was actually seconded to the Nunavut
Housing Corporation. So | think those are
all factors that negated the consultation at
that point and time. Jamie is back on the file
now, and like I said I think we’ve got some
soft community support, and individuals
have spoken to both Jamie and myself that
they would support a hydro project. So |
think that is important.

Having said that, it is important we go
through a community consultation process
to make sure that everybody is supportive of
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the project, or as many people are
supportive of the project as possible. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
And thanks for that answer. Are you
expecting to conduct any community
consultations? | know that there have been a
few meetings in the past, but since you have
a person on the file full-time now, are you
expecting to do more of this? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes I
think we will. We don’t have a day or
anything scheduled at this point in time. |
think what we spent the past few months
trying to do is assess where we are and get
up speed again both Jamie and myself. Like
| said, we recently actually took a helicopter
ride to both sites to have a look to see what
equipment was still there and not there and
what kind of shape it is in. And surprisingly,
it’s in reasonably good shape and we
probably have our guys go our sometime in
the winter and pick up some of that stuff
that’s out there. But certainly it is incumbent
upon us to have another round of
consultation with communities, | just don’t
have a date at this point in time | can give
you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
One of the things that | have heard is that
the one Jaynes Inlet, can only really meet
our needs now, and probably not into the
future. But it is perhaps the less costly one. |
was wondering if you could elaborate on
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So
Jaynes Inlet can probably generate
anywhere from ten to maybe fifteen
megawatts of power, and it will meet the
current demand. We probably will have to
build about a eighty to eighty-five kilometer
wooden power pole transmission line into
the city to accommodate this project.

| can speak really quickly about Armshow
South. They can probably generate say six
to maybe nine megawatts of power.
Probably will be built after the Jaynes Inlet
site for future expansion, and there is some
advantage to that, you can always learn
from your first one and hope you didn’t
make that much in the way of mistakes but
you never know. | can certainly share with
you the fact sheets with you after the
hearings, its public information. I have no
problem giving that to Members, in fact,
maybe at the break | will make copies to
give everybody. Thank you, Mr. Chairman

Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Armstrong site, is that big enough to
provide for future use, is it big enough to
provide for future use without the Jaynes
Inlet site? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you Ms. Angnakak, |
assume you meant the Armshow site. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. No as
you said the plan would be to do the Jaynes
Inlet site first, and then the Armshow South
would be the expansion site. It’s a-r-m-s-h-
o-w. I thought it was “Armshall” until
recently I realized | always had it wrong in
my head. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Ms. Angnakak.

Ms. Angnakak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
That is the last of my questions. | want to
thank the witness for his time. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you Ms. Angnakak. |
don’t have any names on my list right now
so | think we will take a little break. But
before we do | just have a question
regarding something | had stated in my
opening comments, | have a number of
questions, but with respect to my colleagues
I will let them get through their questions.
But I do want to ask this one: you’d spoken
early about GN back debt for Qulliq Energy
Corporation, and yet you are looking at
borrowing up to $74 million to fund capital
projects for 2013-15. Just to use a simple
term, how are you looking at paying back
that money and still continuing with the
capital expenditures that are needed to bring
this territory’s infrastructure up to its needs?
Visa card limits don’t keep going up and up
until you run out. Mr. Ma, if you could
comment on that.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
current $74 million tranche with the CIBC is
guaranteed by the Government of Nunavut.
It’s a three-year capital expansion program.
I should give some background because |
think it’s important for members and the
public to understand this part. This is the
first major capital program that this
corporation has ever undertaken. Certainly
we did a power plant expansion or
replacement in Baker Lake but that project
wasn’t managed by QEC. It was actually
managed by the Northwest Territories
Power Corporation. The second power plant
that I think we’ve worked on would be here
in lgaluit. That was the first one that we
undertook as a corporation.

But in terms of a major multi-year capital
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expansion program, this is the first of its
kind for the corporation. I will quite
honestly say it has not been without its
challenges. Believe me there are some
challenges and I think when | spoke or
answered one of Member Angnakak’s
questions, I said we’re actually looking at
our whole capital planning and reporting
process because it will have to be
strengthened to support this type of capital
expansion.

This program is over three years. We’re on
target basically at this point of time. We’re
not overly over budget. It’s always got to
move up and down. But at this point I don’t
have too many heart attacks just yet. Some
are behind, some are ahead. It’s just the
nature of the game. The last year of this
program will be next year and right now
we’re already thinking about what we can
do to go forward because you’re right the
VISA limit does have a limit here. We don’t
have an Amex card, unfortunately. At QEC
we only have a VISA program.

It is something we’re looking at. It’s in the
corporate plan. I don’t know what the
answer is. We can probably go back to the
GN and maybe expand or get a little bit
more of a line but then I really want us to
have our capital planning process in place
because then we have to make some
decisions as to what power plants to go
forward with.

I’'m just going to pick on Member Joanasie,
because | know he probably has questions
for Cape Dorset. Maybe we scrap Cape
Dorset and do Pond Inlet or something. I'm
just picking on these guys.

>>| aughter

Let them duke it out. But no, these are
important considerations that we have to
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think about for sure. I don’t have an answer
to that. I can just say that we’re working on
taking the financing options through. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I’m sure
either myself or one of the other committee
members will have some further questions
along that line. With that in mind, we’ll take
a 15 minute recess. Thank you.

>>Committee recessed at 10:08 and
resumed at 10:26

Chairman: Welcome back, everybody. My
list of names seems to have grown quite a
bit over the break, so we will start off with
Mr. Rumbolt, please.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Some of my questions are going to be
related to capital issues. |1 know that this was
touched on a little bit earlier, but I’ll ask
again for more details.

On page 27 of its April 28, 2014 report
concerning the Qulliq Energy Corporation’s
recent general rate application, the Utility
Rates Review Council raised concerns
regarding the significant differences
between what the corporation planned to
spend on its Igaluit main power plant
expansion and distribution system upgrade
projects and the actual cost of these capital
projects. URRC states that the increases in
costs for these capital projects “provide
grossly misleading signals to customers of
QEC...”

What specific actions has the corporation
taken to improve its capital budgeting and
planning process? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As |
indicated in some of my responses back to
Member Angnakak, this is an area that
we’re focusing on and it’s an area of
concern to me. Certainly, just maybe in
addition to URRC’s report, there are signs
that we can do a better job of capital
planning. ’'m going to use an old example.
Early in my days when | was in the
Department of Finance, one of the
challenges we had was the capital planning
process within the Government of Nunavut
and | think, since that time, it has improved.

We actually discussed this whole issue of
capital planning at the June in-person board
meeting. Out of that board meeting, there
was a resolution that the board passed. We
were asked to work with the Department of
CGS to see if we can use some of their best
practices to improve our capital planning
process. | was also directed to contact the
Northwest Territories Power Corporation to
see how they do their capital planning
process as well.

| indicated that we were to also report back
to the board at the end of this month, but
more than likely at the fall in-person board
meeting now just because of timing. We
actually had one of our people in finance
review each capital project with the
individual project holder to see what the
status was. We have identified areas where
we can make improvements.

I think, sometimes as painful as it is, you’re
better off to admit that you have some
things that you need to correct. | will say at
this point in time that we have some things
that we need to correct and do better. | think
that part of the reason for this, as | indicated,
is that we’re relatively new at this whole
capital planning process game.
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| think I mentioned that Baker Lake was
done by NTPC, thanks for the reminder, Mr.
Chairman. | get all excited. Baker Lake, of
course, was a project that we undertook
ourselves. This three-year capital expansion
is a concern because in that capital plan
there are a number of major capital power
plant replacements that we’re doing.

All that to say is that we know we have
some improvements to make. I think |
alluded to that in my opening comments,
that we’re not perfect. We have some
deficiencies that we need to work on. This is
high amongst that list of deficiencies that |
think that we need to work on is the whole
capital planning. Just to be clear, a reporting
process. We’re not regulars at the reporting
side of this at this point either. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On page 40 of report, the Utility Rates
Review Council raised some concerns
regarding the QEC’s current fuel storage
capacity in Nunavut communities. In its
report, it noted that in Igaluit alone the
shortage of fuel tank capacity costs QEC to
incur additional charges from February 2013
forward, which on an analyzed basis, would
amount to a fuel cost increase of more than
$1 million.

What specific actions has the corporation
taken to address this issue? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. So at

this point, very specifically, nothing. Having
said that, we are looking at the overall issue
within the power corporation, because it is a
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concern. As probably all Members know,
we’ve purchased fuel through a number of
means. We purchased some through our
own account that we hold in our tanks. As
we need additional fuel, we then buy from
PPD at their prices. Certainly, there’s an
opportunity. Again, it gets down to places
like location, dollars, and priorities.
Certainly, it’s a valid observation that we
need to pay attention to. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
In that same quote that | just stated, it says
in lgaluit alone, the storage of fuel tank
capacity causes the QEC additional charges.
Where it states in Igaluit alone makes me
believe that there are other places that QEC
has their own fuel storage facilities. Other
than lgaluit, how many community power
plants have their own fuel storage facilities?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don’t
have that information available, and I don’t
know it off the top of my head. 1 will
undertake to supply the answer to the
Member after the hearing is over. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that
commitment, Mr. Ma. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Given the fact that it does cost more when
you have to purchase fuel from PPD, or
other sources, does the power corporation
intend to increase their storage facilities in
their communities? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
in an ideal world we would. Again it gets
back to what I say about having the physical
location to do this with capital dollars to do
it. Obviously, some planning ahead to all
that, like I said, the scenario that we’re
looking at. We’re just working on our 2015-
16 capital plans.

I’1l be honest at this point in time, we’ll
probably will slow down the capital plan
and try to get caught up a little bit. So this
may be out in the future for a while yet.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Has the QEC done any kind of cost
comparison out in the smaller communities
on whether it’s more feasible to build your
own fuel storage facility, or continue with
the present way that things are done? Would
it be cheaper if the power corporation had
their own fuel storage facilities out in our
communities? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To my
knowledge, we’ve not done that type of
analysis. Having said that, I’d like to maybe
expand upon my answer, if | may. | think
there is a bit of dilemma because PPD buys
fuel and they store it. If we also then build a
tank and we also store it, then are we
duplicating storage capacity? I don’t know
what the answer to that is. It is something
that we’d have to consider.

There is also a second issue I’d like to raise
with this and that’s the broader policy
question. The broader policy question is the
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whole issue of price setting within
government. PPD sets the price for all fuel
in the territory. We’re treated just like any
other customer. But that optimally has an
impact in terms of how or what we charge
our ratepayers or our customers.

At some point in time it probably is
worthwhile for all government, maybe the
Department of Finance, the Department of
Community and Government Services and
ourselves to have a conversation about this
whole fuel price rate setting structure that
we have within the territory. Because it kind
of takes from one hand and put it in the
other pocket and it’s just going around and
around so we need to have some discussion
about all these different subsidies and
different prices that we have in the territory.

It’s a broader policy discussion. I wouldn’t
have the answer today but it’s something I
think we should probably examine at some
point in time. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On a different line of questioning, on page 9
of Qulliq Energy Corporation’s 2014-18
corporate plan indicates that the second
largest item in QEC’s budget is
compensation and benefits. This item is also
a driver of increasing rates in the governed
by the collective agreement. QEC’s most
recent collective agreement with Nunavut
Employee’s Union expired in December of
2013. As of today, what is the status of the
collective bargaining between the QEC and
the NEU? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As the
member indicated, our current collective
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agreement expired December 31, 2013. We
had two rounds of discussions with the NEU
which lead ultimately to the NEU requesting
a mediator. That request was sent formally
to the Minister responsible for the Public
Service Act. If you want | can give you the
dates later. I’ll just go through the basic
chronology of what’s happened.

Both the union and the government agreed
to the individual that would be the mediator.
That mediator is also the same individual
that was the mediator the last go around. So
he would know both sides of the issue, both
the QEC side and the NEU side of it.

At this point we’ve been having difficulty
finding a mutually agreeable date for all
three parties to get together. From my
perspective, I’d like to resolve this sooner
rather than later. | think some certainty in
terms of salaries would be good for both our
staff and also for us as a corporation as we
plan our budget cycles. That’s where we’re
at at this point in time. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Where’s the final authority to approve on
behalf of Qulliq Energy Corporation the
terms and conditions of the new collective
agreement? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
process would be similar to the approval of
the budgets. Once we, at the negotiation
table, reach a tentative agreement with the
NEU we would bring it back to our board.
Our board would then approve it for
recommendation to the Financial
Management Board. It would then there go
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to the Financial Management Board for their
blessing and if they agree then on our side,
the QEC’s side, it would be approved. The
NEU obviously would have to give this
membership to ratify on their end of it. If
both sides are in agreement then we have a
new deal. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On page 42 of the Qullig Energy
Corporation’s 2012-13 annual report it
indicates that it spend a total of $27,311,000
on salaries, wages and benefits for its
employees in the 2012-13 fiscal year.

Page 34 of the Qulliq Energy Corporation’s
2014-18 corporate plan indicates that its
2014-15 budget for the compensation and
benefits is $27,520,000.

Page 35 of the Qulliq Energy Corporation’s
2014-18 corporate plan indicates that the
corporation has a total of approximately 194
positions. This works out to approximately
$140,000 per position in compensation and
benefits. Does QEC anticipate the next
collective agreement with NEU to
significantly increase pay rates? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Without giving away our bargaining
position, | guess | would say that | hope not.
| think, from our perspective as the
employer, we want to be fair to our
employees and treat them fairly so that they
get a decent wage, but at the same time, |
think we’re cognizant of the impact to our
ratepayers. Certainly, we want to keep any
increase to what’s in line with current
collective agreements that have been signed.
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I don’t recall what the NTA’s was off the
top of my head, but I think they were
probably 1 percent, 1 percent, and 1 percent
or something like that over four years. | can
check for sure. If we can kind of keep it
within that range, 1 would be likely happy as
president all around. I’m not sure if my staff
would be happy, but I think the ratepayers
would be happy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As | previously stated, there are
approximately 194 positions in QEC. Is this
number anticipated to increase in the next
fiscal year? If so, which communities would
positions be added? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At this
point, we have no plans of significantly
increasing our staffing complement. | would
say that it would probably stay constant. We
might add one or two positions, but there are
no current plans at this point to do that.
We’re in the preliminary stages of the 2015-
16 O&M budget, so I don’t anticipate any
changes at this point in time.

If I may, | can perhaps give you the NTA
number if | have it here. | might just have it
handy. Yes, | do. What NTA signed with the
government was increases of 3 percent, 2
percent, 1 percent, and 1 percent on July 1
of each year starting in 2013. Hopefully |
can keep it below that within our collective
agreement with NEU. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.
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Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
With the given number that nearly $30
million is spent on wages and benefits
throughout the power corporation and, of
course, the ratepayers and consumers are the
ones who end up paying these fees, what is
the power corporation doing to ensure that
this money is spent wisely? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It kind
of goes back to the way we run our
operations. The less power outages you
have, the more it helps you contain the wage
envelope. If our plant operators can keep
their regular hours and not have to be
available for calls and standbys and things
like that, it certainly helps.

On the administration side, if we can do our
jobs a little more efficiently and not have to
work overtime, it contains the wage
envelope, but there is a certain amount that |
think is somewhat fixed, if you will, that we
have to recognize and spend to make sure
the power is kept on for our ratepayers. It’s
finding that balance, Mr. Chairman, and
hopefully we can achieve that balance in
terms of cost and reliability. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On page 27 of the Qullig Energy
Corporation’s 2012-13 annual report, it
indicates that the corporation “wrote off
$353,125 of bad debt” that exceeded $500
during the 2012-13 fiscal year. Some of the
individuals who had their debts to QEC
written off are public figures who hold
prominent positions in the public and
private sectors. How does the corporation
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determine if a debt is uncollectible? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Very good question, Mr.
Rumbolt. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m
going to go off the top of my head, but you
probably noticed in, | think, our 2014-18
corporate plan and if it’s not in there, for
sure, when the Minister tables the 2013-14
annual report, we speak quite a bit about a
customer care committee that we have and
that customer care committee makes every
effort to work with our customers to ensure
they pay their bills with us. It’s important
for a number of reasons. One is if we can’t
collect our receivables it’s hard for us to pay
other people in turn.

For those of you that looked at our financial
statements in some detail you probably
noticed we owe PPD a significant amount of
money. If we don’t collect from our
customers it’s hard for us to pay them in
turn.

The collection process is really, really
important. We’ve made significant efforts
with major business customers to have them
pay their bills. I don’t think it’s appropriate,
and maybe businesses don’t want to hear
this, it’s not appropriate that they don’t pay
their bills because it’s impacting our
ratepayers ultimately in the end.

With respect to residential customers, we
make every effort with our customers to
have them pay their bills. Cutting customers
off or putting low limiters on are very last
resort type things. We give our customer
care people a significant amount of
discretion to make those calls but at some
point unfortunately you do have to make
those kinds of hard decisions.
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With respect to your question directly on
page 27-28, | can only guess at the
residential customer that you’re referring to
and I’m going to say that that was at a time
when that customer was residing in a
different community and not within the
public service and has since paid that
obligation to the corporation. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Before | go
to the next name, one thing piqued my
interest during Mr. Rumbolt’s question on
costs of doing business. Does dividing
QEC’s main office between Iqaluit and
Baker Lake add additional costs? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | would
probably answer that by saying only in
terms of some additional travel. | think with
today’s technology in terms of information
technology and the Internet we can do a lot
of work through the Internet.

One thing I should probably get on the band
wagon and say here is that we have voice
over Internet protocol on our phone system
now so that will save us some money. So for
example if someone wants to call me in
Baker Lake they don’t dial long distance
anymore through NorthwesTel they can just
direct dial me and that will save us some
money.

The other thing I think in terms of
efficiency, we have what | call the hot topics
meeting every Tuesday and Thursday. It’s
an opportunity for our senior management
team to discuss any issues that we all need
to know about or get some direction from
me on or just get a general sense of what
needs to happen. That’s really helped in
terms of efficiency.

We obviously have our monthly senior
management meeting as well and in fact
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after today, tomorrow we’ll have that
reoccurring thing. I think we can stay in
contact without having to travel very much.

Certainly for board meetings it’s good to
have the individuals here. Certainly my
CFO would have to come over, and
certainly the Director of Human Resources
would have to come over. Typically the
majority of our board meetings are here in
Igaluit. We are making an effort to rotate to
the communities as well and that partly is
one of the reasons why we’re going to
Cambridge Bay next week.

I think it’s important for the staff and the
board to have contact with our ratepayers
and that’s one way to do to that. Hopefully
that answers your question, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you.

Chairman: Somewhat, Mr. Ma. I’m sure
my colleague from Baker Lake will have
some more pointed questions along those
similar lines in the very near future.

The next name that | have on my list is the
Member from Arviat-South, Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Qulliq Energy Corporation’s 2009-2010
report on contracting, procurement and
leasing activities was tabled in the
Legislative Assembly on February 24, 2011.
However, annual reports for the 2010-11,
2011-12, 2012-13 and 2013-14 fiscal years
have not been tabled in the Legislative
Assembly.

The QEC’s recent ministerial letters of
expectation also required that the
corporation produce annual reports on
contracting, procurement and leasing
activities. Why has the QEC not been
respecting this direction? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you very much for
asking that question, Mr. Savikataaq. I'm
sure Mr. Ma was paying attention during the
line of questioning that we had with Mr.
Akeeagok and was anticipating this
question. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Mr. Chairman, you read my mind.
Maybe I’ll give both the good news, and I’ll
explain what’s happened. I think also make
Member Savikataaq happy. The Minister
will be tabling in the fall sitting, if all goes
well, all the outstanding reports. So
basically, 2011-12, 2012-13, and | think
there’s an odd one in here but I can’t
remember which year, but they will all be
tabled to bring us up to date.

The reasons why they were not tabled on a
timely basis was that during the OAG’s
2002 report on procurement of the GN
procurement practices, they identified some
weaknesses in the way we were
accumulating our information. The
corporation has worked on fixing those
problems and has produced the report for
the Minister so he can table them in the
House.

This gets back to your question about
accountability and transparency, and all
those things. It’s important that we file these
things. Table these kinds of information on
a timely basis to Members, and also for the
public so they can see how we are spending
our money. So, I’'m glad you asked that
question. It is something that has to happen.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, Mr. Ma, for that. We’ll be
looking forward to receiving and looking at
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those reports. The QEC also in 2009-10
reported on contracting, procurement, and
leasing, which I just said was last year when
it was tabled. On page 11 of this report
indicates that the QEC did apply the NNI
Policy to its contracting and procurement
activities during the 2009 and 2010 fiscal
year.

When did the QEC make a decision to stop
applying the NNI Policy to its contracting
and procurement activities? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataaq. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | am
going to make a tongue-in-cheek comment
about you getting the procurement reports
from the Minister. Now I’m afraid that you
are going to have questions about those
contracting activity reports, procurement
activity reports, and leasing activity reports,
but that’s okay. To answer this question, it
was before my time and I think it was 2012.

Right now part of the Government of
Nunavut’s NNI review committee that was
struck by the Department of Executive and
Intergovernmental Affairs and the
Department of Economic Development and
Transportation. So we have been part of that
whole review process. I think it’s the view
of the Minister and certainly the board to
see somehow that we implement NNI within
the corporation. At this point, I can’t tell
you when, but we’ve been very actively
engaged with that review process.

I can also tell some of the financial impacts
a little bit here. If you look at our budget,
the one area that would apply from the
O&M perspective is about $20 million in
supplies and services. It seems that the full
21 percent was all NNI-able that would
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impact our bottom line by about $4 million.

I think we’re part of government and have a
certain duty to apply NNI, certainly that’s to
do with the Minister and the board.
Certainly, something we’re working towards
again in the future. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. | may have
some other questions along that line later
on. Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataag: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On page 8 of the Qullig Energy
Corporation’s 2014 to 2018 Corporate Plan
it indicates that due to lack of corporate and
private ratepayers, there is an inability to
charge suitable rates to generate the
necessary revenue in small communities to
properly fund the required maintenance and
capital improvements to the power
infrastructure. The corporation continues to
address the lack of revenue by filing general
rate applications, fuel stabilizer rider
applications, and requesting the Government
of Nunavut to cover fuel subsidization rider
shortfalls.

In June of this year, QEC had announced
that it had received approval to impose an
increased base rate of 7.1 percent and this
was effective May 1, 2014 to all of its
customers, classes, and communities. To
what extent will this rate increase enable
QEC to address such issues as the need to
replace aging power plants over the next
five to ten years? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is
an interesting policy question that we have
to maybe address with our regulators, so to
speak, the Utility Rates Review Council.
I’m not sure if all Members are aware of it
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or not, but the recommendations that URRC
made was that we get a 9 percent return on
our rate base. Certainly, that will help do
some of the preventative maintenance and
other things that you have alluded to.
Certainly, within the review process, in our
budgets, we anticipate some of that in there,
so that will also help.

There was something else | was going to say
and | lost my train of thought here.

The whole thing with the customer base is
that we have to maybe perhaps look at other
revenue sources. | mean there are two ways
of making your budget better. You either
increase your revenue where you cut your
costs and | think we have spent quite a bit of
time looking at ways to be more efficient
and cutting some more costs. The flipside is
perhaps the revenue side of it. We’re
investing some time this year in terms of
looking at what we call district heating
projects or residual heating projects.

At this point in time, we think we have five
communities in which we have paying
customers. There is an opportunity, perhaps,
to raise additional revenue that way. Now, |
should probably point out to Members that
that type of revenue is, at this point, not
regulated. In other words, URRC does not
look at that. At some point in time, they may
and I don’t know, and that’s kind of a policy
discussion we need to have with them.

I’11 use the City of Igaluit for example for
district heating. They’re building a new
[aquatic] centre here and we’re having some
discussions, perhaps, of maybe doing a
district heating project with them in that
regard. We’re in the early stages of
discussion. I think we’re probably going to
do something, but I don’t want to kind of
spill the beans too much. We have to look
for opportunities to raise revenues as well as
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cutting costs. That’s really what I’'m trying
to say. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Savikataaq.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

| have heard of these residual heat projects.
There’s one in Arviat and that one has been
going on for a while. I’m just curious. I
don’t know if this is too detailed, but how
do you figure out what rate to charge? How
is that calculated? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataaq. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’ll
give you an undertaking to get back to you.
This is an area that [’'m actually starting to
learn more about myself. It’s a good
question. I’1l get an answer back to you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’ll just make a
note.

Chairman: Thank you for that
commitment, Mr. Ma. Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On a different matter here, on page 59 of
your April 28, 2014 report concerning the
Qulliq Energy Corporation’s recent general
rate application, the Utility Rates Review
Council notes that QEC has had
“Discussions with a potential mine (Agnico-
Eagle mine) in Rankin Inlet to share the
diesel generation plant costs in the
community...” This was talked about a bit,
but what | would like to know is: in those
talks, have you been talking to them about
the power line from Manitoba? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don’t
know the answer directly, but I will expand
upon my answer and that may answer your

question.

Agnico-Eagle, I think, is part of the Energy
Working Group that was struck from the
Hudson Bay regional round table
discussions. They met, | believe, in May and
they just met again recently in Baker Lake
last week, I think it was. I haven’t gotten an
update from my staff on that, but certainly
from my perspective, the fact that Agnico-
Eagle is part of that working group and is
participating would indicate to me that there
is an opportunity.

One of the things that the Hudson Bay
regional round table talked about was a
transmission line from Manitoba, as you
know, into the Kivalliq region. The
intensive guesses from Manitoba hydro to
sell hydro power to us, so we will see how
that goes, and obviously we are in the early
days.

I should also say that, if you are not aware
of it, the minister had an appearance with
the Senate standing committee on the
environment, natural resources, and
something else, I can’t remember what it is,
but that was the one of the things he spoke
about was the possibility of a transmission
line from Manitoba to Nunavut. So that is
certainly something that is on our radar
screen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman

Chairman: Thank you Mr. Ma. Our
member from Baker Lake was at that
roundtable last week. So | am sure he may
have some input into that as well too. Mr.
Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On your 2014-18 corporate plan there on
page 3, your mission statement says “QEC
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provides safe, reliable, and efficient
electricity, and plan long-term, affordable
energy to Nunavut.” To me and in my
opinion that just speaks of the power line
from Manitoba, so can | have your position
on whether you’re for it, or not sure about
bringing up a power line from Manitoba to
the Kivalliq region. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
that my minister, Minister Okalik, and our
board has made it very clear that this is a
priority for them. Certainly the minister has,
otherwise he wouldn’t have said that to the
Senate standing committee. And certainly,
one of our board members was somewhat a
participant in those Hudson Bay regional
roundtable discussions. And during our
March board meeting, he got the support of
the whole board to move that forward.

So, the fact that we also have one of our
staff members sitting on the initial working
group speaks volumes that we are definitely
behind this as an opportunity.

The individual that sits on the energy
working group is our CFO, she is based in
Baker Lake, she was at the meetings last
week, like I said I have not had the
opportunity to touch base with them to see
what progress was made last week in Baker
Lake. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: So I guess that wasn’t one of
the topics of your “hot topics” weekly
conversation? Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

This is not a question, just a final comment.
You talk about aging power plants, and fuel
storage capacity issues, pollution issues,
contaminated site issues, and for the
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Kivalliq region it seems to be a win-win
situation to bring up a power line. You don’t
have to worry about buying fuel, storing
fuel, pumping greenhouse gasses into the
air, it is safe, reliable energy. And, 1 would
encourage the QEC and the minister to
pursue this idea of the power line because |
believe that’s the way to go. It’s nice clean
energy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you Mr. Savikataag. That
was a comment, but I will allow Mr. Ma to
respond, if he so wishes.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just
really quickly, yes, | cannot disagree with
you it makes perfect sense. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Next on
my list is one | was looking forward to, Mr.
Mikkungwak, from Baker Lake.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. ‘Good morning’ to all the people
of Baker Lake and Nunavut. | guess a
number of my questions will lead into what
some of my colleagues were asking, but first
of all I would like to ask on page 35 of the
QEC 2014-18 corporate plan indicates that
the corporation has a total of nine executive
and senior manager positions.

Which of these positions are located at the
corporation’s headquarters in Baker Lake,
and which of these positions are located at
the corporations executive offices in lgaluit?
| do know | did ask part of this in spring
sitting, but 1 would like to get your
feedback. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.
Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before

I answer the Member’s questions, I just
want to acknowledge and thank him for his
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hospitality when we were in Baker Lake
about nine months ago in November. The
Member hosted the Minister and myself to a
community feast and that was the best
caribou meat I had in my life ever. It was
very tender. | want to thank you for that
again.

With respect to your question, one third or
three of the nine positions are based in
Baker Lake. I’ll give you the positions; the
CFO, which is the chief financial officer, the
Director of Information Technology, and the
Director of Human Resources.

The other six positions are based here in
Igaluit and I’ll give you those six positions
as well; obviously my position as president,
the vice president, the Director of
Operations, Director of Corporate Affairs,
Director of Engineering, the Director of
Health, Safety and Environment. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I thank the president for his
response. At the same time, | acknowledge
all the residents of Baker Lake for hosting a
community feast. | acknowledge them for
that.

When earlier my colleague indicated
possible investment or possible work,
Nunavut-Manitoba or roundtable work and
whatnot this leads me to ask the question
why can’t most or all of your corporation’s
most senior employees including the
president be located at Baker Lake
headquarters especially when major projects
of this nature are in the works. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
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When are you moving to Baker Lake, Mr.
Ma?

>>[ aughter

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’1l
give you a tongue-in-cheek answer first.
This is not a serious answer. I don’t think
my way better half that she would like to go
to Baker Lake. I think she would prefer to
move to Pang since that’s where she’s from.

>>| aughter

So maybe we’ll have to relocate everything
to Pang.

But seriously, I think that’s a decision for
Executive Council to make. I think, in all
honesty, we’re maybe a bit early in our
development as a government. Certainly it’s
always been the intention and the dream
when Nunavut was created to decentralize
as many positions to the communities as
well so they can gain the economic
opportunities and employment and training
opportunities. At this point in time, my
honest answer to you is I don’t know when
but hopefully someday in the near future
that would happen.

I think we’re making some progress in that
regard and I’ll say why. I think when I was
addressing some of the questions raised by
Member Angnakak earlier we spoke about
the Inuit leadership development program
that we have within QEC. I think that’s a
program where we develop professionals
and middle management, senior
management type people who will
eventually get us there.

Regardless of how bright and how hard
those people work, one of the things that
they’re always going to need first is some
actual hands on experience. I think they’re
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getting some of that through the summer
student program. As we go along, I think
that will happen. I just don’t know when.
Certainly I think that is the dream and the
intention of why this government was
created. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. If | could
just interject one quick question, my
apologies my colleague. Out of the nine
senior management positions, how many are
currently beneficiaries? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. One
and that’s the vice president, Jamie Flaherty.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Mikkungwak,
please proceed.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Thank the president for his
response. Which leads me to my next
question but I’ll further ask more in detail.
On page 35 of Qulliq Energy Corporation’s
2014-18 corporate plan indicates that the
corporation has a total of senior manager
positions. As of today, how many of these
positions are filled by beneficiaries, and
how many are filled by non-beneficiaries?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To
answer the question at this point. None of
them are filled by beneficiaries. All seven of
those positions are filled non-beneficiaries
at this point in time. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Are there any future
plans of, as indicated earlier in one of your
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responses, beneficiaries getting further
training into these senior management
positions? Along that line, you also have 24
middle manager positions. As of today, how
many of these positions are filled by
beneficiaries, and how many are non-
beneficiaries? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With
respect to the senior management team, |
indicated earlier that we have the Inuit
Leadership Development Program. One of
the positions that we had hoped to train a
beneficiary into was the CFO position, the
Chief Financial Officer position. We had
actually identified an individual that had
high potential to go into this. That
individual, as you probably know as you are
from Baker Lake, has since moved to
Igaluit. Now is working for my competition
at the Department of Community and
Government Services.

Having said that, | did also indicate that two
of our current students engaged in the
Bachelor Administration Program are
working toward accounting designations,
the accounting program. Hopefully, one of
those two individuals will be able to take the
CFO position.

With respect to the Director of Information
Technology position from Baker Lake, |
should highlight that we have a number of
individuals in Baker Lake that have grown
into very good employees in the information
technology side of it. From what I hear and
what I’ve seen, it’s pretty amazing the
capabilities of these individuals. | would
honestly say at this point in time, that they
may away from being directors in the
information technology area. They,
obviously, have some more learning and
some experience that they really need to do.
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Certainly some potential there.

The Director of Human Resources position
right now is vacant in Baker Lake. Again,
this is an area where typically Inuit have
been strong in. One of the other individuals
that in the Inuit Leadership Development
Program is taking a business administration
program actually in human resources.
Again, we’re probably talking down the
road a bit for that person to be even
considered.

Here in lgaluit, obviously, there is my
position. Maybe the Premier will see fit to
move a beneficiary into this position. That’s
his call, obviously. Jamie is obviously in his
position. | indicated that we have an
individual that’s working towards a
Bachelor of Engineering degree. So
hopefully, he’ll come here to Iqaluit and get
some experience and someday maybe
become the director there.

The Director of Corporate Affairs is a policy
position. Again this is an area where we’re
starting to see some growth in Inuit across
government that are in director of policy
positions. So I think that’s a potential
position down the road. The Director of
Operations, we don’t have anybody
currently identified, at this point in time,
that may be a potential. I think the last area
is the health and safety area in environment.
There are a lot of Inuit taking the
environmental technology program through
the Nunavut Arctic College. So again there
maybe some potential down the road.

| think the key thing here to note is that we
have to continue our efforts to identify high
potential individuals and give them the skill
set and education that they need. I think,
more importantly, all the support that they
need, not just from the financial perspective,
but from personal perspective. | think those
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are the kinds of commitments that we have
to make to our employees. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. (interpretation ends) |
know some of this the next question that |
have is some of this is before your time. But
I’d like to ask this question. Is the QEC
currently involved in any litigation
involving former employees? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m
just going to quickly check my note.
Currently we have one case that’s under
appeal and that will probably be heard this
fall. We have another one that is being
brought forward and we don’t have a date of
when that is but the party has indicated that
they would like to proceed to trial now so
we’ll see how that ends up. Those are the
two that | have currently on our docket so to
speak. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. So with the two cases that you
have before you now, and in the past |
believe there was four or five. Are these in
addition to the past ones? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
should have clarified my initial response to
the Member. There was one case that was
heard in the courts last fall and the
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corporation lost that particular allegation.
The new board chose not to appeal the
decision.

From the board’s perspective it was time to
set a new tone. | think it was important for
the board to signal that even though there
may be differences of opinion from time to
time with employees and the corporation,
we have to try and resolve these things in a
respectful and amicable manner. So that
case we chose not to appeal.

There was one other matter that did not go
to court and again, the board chose to
resolve that out of the courts. Both parties
were happy with the resolution of that

particular matter. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I’m sure that with the new board
and yourself being the new president, I’'m
sure that you guys will be making some
adjustments and | see that as a positive
approach.

Moving along one of my colleagues did ask
but I have a question. Page 38 of your
Qulliq Energy Corporation’s 2009-2010
report on contracting and procurement
indicates that QEC paid a Manitoba-based
consulting company approximately
$160,000 for general rate application
support. What was the total amount that the
QEC paid the consultants over the past four
years to help with preparing its recent
general rate application? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don’t
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have that number in front of me but I can
certainly undertake to provide that to you.
Just by way of background, the firm that we
use in Winnipeg is also used by other
northern power corporations including the
Northwest Territories power corporation
and the Yukon power corporation. But | will
undertake to provide that information to the
member. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that
commitment, Mr. Ma. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for that
response. Now when you use consultants
like that and that next study that’s going to
be coming up, will the next study or
research be done by your own staff? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before
I answer that question, maybe I’ll go back a
little bit and provide some background. So
the last general rate application, the one we
just had, was the third time that QEC did a
general rate application. The first one was
2004 and the second one was in 2011, and
basically, 2014. I think the timeframe
between the first one and the second one
was seven years, and that’s too long. You
have to find that balance between when you
do the general rate application because you
don’t want to do them too soon, because it
involves time, money, and effort. You don’t
want to do them too late because you’re
losing the opportunity to increase your
revenue base.

From what I’ve seen, probably a three year
cycle, maybe four years is the right cycle.
So every three to four years | think you
should be doing it. What it does for you, as
a corporation, it keeps you on your toes in
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terms of your budget and staying on top of
stuff. If you leave it too long, you’re going
to lose sight of things. So I think that’s the
right balance.

| spoke earlier about a summer student that
was in finance that worked here this
summer. That individual worked with our
regulatory person. Our regulatory person is
the one that does all the general rate
application preliminary work. He also does
the fuel stabilization rider work as well. The
intent was that beneficiary would learn from
this individual.

I’'m hopeful that as we go forward, that we
do more and more of this in-house, because
obviously, that would make sense from a
financial perspective and from a corporate
history perspective. Having said that, there
are times when you have to get expertise
that is outside of your area. That’s why | say
you have to find the right balance. If we’re
only doing this every three to four years,
this saves about 150 or 160 as you alluded
to each time, that’s probably a fair
commitment in terms of money. We’ll just
have to see how it goes. I’ll have to get the
number for you for the current application,
then I’ll have a better stance perhaps of how
that thinking would go. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. | thank the president, once again,
for his response. On page 21 of the Qulliq
Energy Corporation’s 2014-18 corporate
plan indicates that one of its priorities has
been to address the issue of outstanding
amounts owed to the corporation. As of
today approximately how much is owed to
the QEC in customer arrears? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Our
normal accounts receivable is in the range of
$20 million each month. I don’t have the
actual number to the end of August at this
point in time, but generally, that’s the
number. It peaks a little bit in the winter
months as there is more power demand by
the people and then drops. Typically, it’s in
the $20 million range. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. When you
say that’s accounts receivable, is that
through the general billing cycle or is that
actually arrears? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s a
bit of stacking bullets where it is the normal
billing cycle and in the outstanding arrears.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Do you have a breakdown? Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: ’'m getting old, Mr. Chairman. |
have to take my glasses off to see the small
print. | can give you this number, and I can
undertake to provide more information to
you. Roughly, about $8 million of that is
over 90 days, and the balance would be
considered somewhat current. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that clarification.
Mr. Mikkungwak, please continue.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you for asking those
questions. To further elaborate. How do you
determine to do a write-off? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Typically, we make every effort to collect
from our customers. After several attempts,
if we don’t go anywhere, then we have to
make a determination as to whether to write
off the account or not. Things that come into
play, for business for example, is it
bankrupt? Is it still around? We try to make
alternative arrangements and we have had
some success recently in making alternative
arrangements with our customers.

Perhaps it’s a residential customers, perhaps
that person deceased, is no longer at that
location, we can’t locate them. Those would
be some of the factors we would take into
consideration before making a
determination or write-off.

I will say though, that even though you do a
write-off, it doesn’t mean that we stop
efforts to try to collect. Obviously in
situations where a corporation is, say,
bankrupt, that is impossible, but where there
are possibilities we will try to continue to
collect the amounts.

They are significant. I don’t think people
realize how significant our accounts
receivable are. We really need to collect the
accounts receivable so we can pay other
vendors, or suppliers, that we have. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Just the $8
million figure alone is almost the new power

plant that’s required in some communities.
Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. When we are discussing that
substantial amount of debt, I guess when
you try and flip the page and when you’re
representing your constituents, this is my
next question is on November 01, 2007, the
provisions in the Qulliq Energy Corporation
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Act provided for the creation of an
affordable energy fund, came into force.

Under this legislation, the purpose of
affordable energy fund is to hold money
appropriated to it in order, directly or
indirectly, to subsidize the cost of energy or
otherwise make energy more affordable. As
of today, how much money is in the
government’s affordable energy fund?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To my
knowledge, there is zero in that affordable
energy fund at this point and time. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman

Chairman: Seven year savings plan with a
zero balance. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Earlier one of my
colleagues had asked about this too, also
was environmental site remediation. But, |
guess even before | was elected MLA,
having been involved in the past hamlet
council. I know when I look at the old
power plant [building] in Baker Lake, which
is no longer in use, and a substantial amount
of that ground is contaminated, and there
have been all kinds of meetings with
AANDC, the government, and all parties.
Can you elaborate more on that and see
where that is at for the site remediation in
Baker Lake? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | am
just checking the date here. The last
discussion that we’ve had with Aboriginal
Affairs and Northern Development Canada
was in 2011. So, that’s three years ago. And
when Member Angnakak was asking her
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questions, I think I indicated that it’s been a
challenge to get them to the table. So it’s
something we need to pursue a little more
vigorously | guess and perhaps we have in
the past. That’s about all I can say at this
point. Thank you, Mr. Chairman

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Mikkungwak

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. I look forward to further
meetings in Baker Lake regarding that
because as you have seen the site when you
were briefly in Baker Lake, it is a large,
substantial area which is also sloping into
our community water. I definitely would
like to see further meetings and at the same
time, | know there were reports from all
parties and studies that were done and
maybe it’s time that the meetings occur
again and do further proactive remediation
in that particular project. If so, is there a
timeline to start initiating those meetings
again? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
understand that the Nunavut office of
AANDC has a regional director general. |
think he or she has just started about a week
ago. Perhaps this is a good time for us to
introduce ourselves to one another. Yes, it’s
a good time to start. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. At the same time, with the new
plant that’s in Baker Lake, as you indicated
and one of my colleagues sort of briefly
touched on this, with residual heating, |
know there were discussions of residual
heating which was going to go to some of
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our schools and some major buildings
within our community to offset costs. Can |
be updated more on that in correspondence
as to where that stands now and maybe
through my colleague here, as to how cost
effective it is? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, |
can undertake to provide you with some
written correspondence on the status of the
Baker Lake residual heat project. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. The
Member also requested if you have any
educational material on how the residual
heat program actually works and some of
the cost analysis. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you. | guess my
last question here would be, in the media, at
times, you will see from the NWT side the
Arctic Energy Alliance, energy-efficient
appliances, and whatnot. | do recall a couple
of years back when your organization had a
name change. There were some brochures
and information that were provided to rate-
paying customers. Are you guys going to be
further investing in that avenue? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Actually, you gave me a perfect opportunity
to talk about some of the things. One of the
changes that we made is to our domain
name. [’m not sure if everybody knows it or
not, but at this point in time, when you send
emails to the staff at QEC, it’s actually
“npc.nu.ca.” We have changed that now to
“gec.nu.ca” because it often gets confused
with the Nunavut Planning Commission.
That’s something that I should let Members
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know.

Yes, we have actually started what we call
an awareness and educational campaign for
our customers. Let me just see what some of
the things we have done. In September,
we’re supposed to roll out “How to pay your
bill.” I’'m actually not sure if that’s rolled
out or not. I don’t usually go pay the bills;
my wife does that. In October, we’re going
to do “Moving in and moving out.”
Basically, it’s tips about how to do different
things. Some time in the fall/winter, we’re
going to do conservation tips.

We’re also starting to use social media as
well. I’'m not sure if everybody knows but
we try to use Facebook and Twitter. For
example, when we have power outages we
try to Twitter so that people are aware of it.

Some of you may have noticed also recently
that when we have scheduled power outages
we’ve made a point of doing public service
announcements. I’ve made the effort myself
also as a president to send you emails so
you’re aware of it. So hopefully you’re
getting those emails. I’ve been trying to
send them to both your Legislative
Assembly accounts and | think to your
constituency emails so if you’re not getting
them please let me know and we can
improve upon that.

We’re also going to do some safety tips.
One thing in your question that you
basically have raised is that we’ve not done
as good of a job educating the public and
corresponding with the public and
interacting with the public. So that’s
something I’'m hoping to change.

Certainly | found that when | was at the
Department of Health that was a big driver
in terms of helping our clients and our
patients understand our business. Sometimes
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they still weren’t happy with us, but at least
we were trying to make the effort of
communicating with them.

That’s something I really want to do with
QEC. We’ve been sitting in the dark and
nobody really knows what’s going to
happen so that’s something we’re really
going to try and work on. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Sounds like it’s time to turn the
lights on, Mr. Ma.

>>| aughter
Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman. You pretty well led into my
next question here. When you look at
informing the general public, you’re taking
all avenues. In this day and age and with
this new government with some increases in
fuel and then you’ve got power rate
increases, when we look at our power bills
nowadays we see a drastic amount all of a
sudden.

Is there an actual plan or strategy from QEC
and seeing that you are now the president, is
there an action plan or strategy as to how to
inform ratepayers across the territory why
there’s this increase in rate? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | would
say that during the general rate application
process we really made an effort to make
the public aware of the potential for a power
rate increase and what some of those cost
drivers were and what the potential rate
increase would be.
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The Utilities Rate Review Council also has
its own website in which people can make
their comments and get additional
information on.

| should probably say to that maybe most of
our customers don’t realize this but we have
something called the Nunavut Electricity
Subsidy Program and every year about $8
million in residential customer accounts are
subsidized by the Government of Nunavut
directly. The subsidy works in this way. For
the first 700 kilowatt-hours in the summer
months and I have to check but I think that’s
August to December it’s subsidized at half
the Iqaluit rate. Why it’s subsidized at the
Igaluit rate is that Igaluit has the cheapest
rate so you’re subsidized for that portion of
it. Then in the winter months the same thing
applies but it’s up to 1000 kilowatt-hours.

So if you stay within the 700 kilowatt-hours
in the summer, and the 1000 kilowatt-hours
in the wintertime, you’re getting a pretty
good subsidy from the government and you
won’t see that big of an impact on your
power bill. It’s only when you exceed those
amounts, those thresholds that you would
see the community rate really kick into play.

I think it’s really important that the public
and Members realize that. Like I said, it’s a
significant subsidy by the Government of
Nunavut to the tune of $8-9 million a year.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
Thank you, Mr. Ma. Before | go on to my
next name we’ll probably break for lunch
but I just have a quick question. Earlier you
were talking about site remediation on
contaminated sites and you stated your
position and the Government of Nunavut’s
position. What is the federal position on
that? Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s
probably not polite to repeat what they
would probably say. But I think they would
probably say it’s your problem and I think
typically that has been their approach. I will
say that the courts of law have basically
established the polluter pays principle, so |
think that is somewhat enshrined in case law
and certainly that would be our position
going forward. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Are you
saying that the next step in this process is to
go through the courts? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Hopefully not. In my response to Member
Mikkungwak, I think I indicated that | think
that if we can go the diplomatic route, so to
speak, it would be worthwhile to have the
initial discussions with AANDC and then go
from there or the federal government,
depending on who has the jurisdiction, but |
think that’s the approach that we would
take. We would try to at least have a
dialogue and see if we can come to some
sort of a mutual understanding and
agreement, but | would suspect that it would
take some time and effort to get to that
stage. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. It might be
something to throw at somebody at the first
week on the position, but I guess it’s a step
that you may have to take.

At this time, we will break for lunch. We
will return at 1:30 and the first name on my
list when we return is Mr. Joanasie. Thank
you, everyone.

>>Committee recessed at 11:41 and
resumed at 13:20

Chairman: Welcome back, everybody. |
was speaking to Mr. Ma over the break and
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he has some further information from one of
the questions that Mr. Rumbolt had asked
earlier this morning. If you wanted to
provide that response? Mr. Ma. Thank you.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thanks
for the opportunity to provide additional
information to Member Rumbolt. One of the
questions from Member Rumbolt was where
we have fuel tank storage capacities, and it’s
in all communities. I can give you a listing
of the capacity in each community, if you
want it at some point in time as well, that is
available. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. We left off
with Mr. Joanasie at the microphone. Please
proceed, sir.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | would like to welcome you,
Mr. Ma, and all the people listening out
there. First of all, I would like further
information on who gives the approval
regarding your corporate plans for 2014-18?
Is it you, as the President of the Qulliq
Energy Corporation? Or is it the Minister
responsible for the Qullig Energy
Corporation? Or is it the QEC Board of
Directors? Or the Financial Management
Board? If you can understand the question.
That is my first one. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Joanasie, | was a little
confused after some of the responses earlier
today too. Mr. Ma, if you could provide us
with more detail, please?

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Maybe
before I answer Member Joanasie’s
question, I’ll just give a little bit of
background. The first step in the process
would be for the board to approve a
strategic plan. I think during questions from
Member Angnakak we spoke a bit about the
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strategic plan. The corporate plan then
comes from the strategic plan. The strategic
plan, basically, lays out broad goals that the
corporation is trying to achieve, the
corporate plan fills in those details in terms
of the actual strategic goals.

The process, basically, starts this time of
year. It should have actually started already.
We as the management team then would
bring forward priorities for the board to
consider at the fall in-person board meeting.
The board can vary it, accept in the whole,
or whatever they choose to do.

So basically, the board would approve the
corporate plan. From there though, because
of process, | think it might have been in the
chairman’s opening comments, there is not
the opportunity for debate in this Assembly.
So there is an additional step whereby the
Minister also has to review the corporate
plan. He or she can choose to accept it or
not before he or she brings it to cabinet for
approval. Cabinet then would approve the
corporate plan for tabling in this House, at
which point, Members then see it publicly
and comment on it, like in this sitting.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie, do you have more questions?

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Do you go through the same
procedure in approving the budget? Does it
go through the QEC Board of Directors? To
the Minister? How does the annual budget
get approved? And who does the approval?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | would
say that the budgeting process and the
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corporate plan process are very similar to
the GN’s. I think the only major difference
from my perspective would be that we have
board of directors in between the
corporation and Executive Council. I think
I’d indicated to a question from Member
Angnakak that again the process would be
the same. As we develop the corporate plan
we have to put some numbers to it. The
budget gets prepared at the same time and
together in some respects.

We would then bring it typically to our
board in the fall board meeting and typically
that fall board meeting is in October or
November. We try to work around the fall
sitting of this House. It’s hard to support
your minister when he is in the House or she
is in the House and at the same time have a
board meeting.

Once the board has approved the budget,
corporate plan, and the capital plan they
then all go forward to the minister and if the
minister is ok with it then it would go
forward to Executive Council for approval
for tabling it in this House. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for the answer. | have another
question kind of along the same lines which
is to ask what or who has the final authority
to approve on behalf of QEC the terms and
conditions of the NEU collective
agreement? Is it the president, the minister
responsible, the QEC board members, or
FMB? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To
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answer your question in short, ultimately it
would be the Financial Management Board.
But again | would just reiterate the process.
If we reach a tentative agreement with the
NEU it would go to the board for approval.
The board would approve it for
recommendation to Executive Council. Our
minister then would bring it forward to the
Financial Management Board to seek their
approval.

Our negotiation mandate is also proved even
before we go into collective bargaining by
the Financial Management Board.
Obviously the board and the senior
management team has input into that
process. It’s similar to what | just described.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. I would like to thank you for
your response. Again to another issue, just
for further clarity, there were some
questions this morning. My colleague from
Baker Lake asked a question regarding the
24 middle management. How many are
beneficiaries? In appendix C, it indicates
that in 2014 March 31 is it the same number
or has there been a change in that? If you
get my question. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. | can
cross that question off my list that | was
going to ask. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Sorry, Mr. Chairman, just bear
with me. What Member Joanasie is referring
to is page 35 of the 2014-18 corporate plan.
That was March 31, 2014 so at that point he
was correct there were three beneficiaries in
middle management. | think | have numbers
to July 31. I’m trying to look up the note.
Bear with me.
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Again it’s in really small print for old guys
like me. At July 31 it’s showing one
beneficiary so I’m not sure what happened
but I can certainly follow up on that. Out of
a total middle management positions of 17,
we had 16 filled of which one was a
beneficiary. I’'m not sure what happened in
the reporting here. That’s a significant drop
in the number of positions so it may be
worthwhile for me to go back and follow up
on that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. | look
forward to having that information. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Again, turning to another
issue and on page 10 of your plan and with
the following Acrticle 23, you touched up on
this issue of it, and you indicated that they
were a number going for further education
with Arctic College. Do you have an
agreement with Arctic College so that your
employees can take financial training, or
accountant training? Do you have an
agreement currently with Nunavut Arctic
College? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. |
believe Mr. Ma said post-secondary in
general, but that is a very legitimate
question. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
Member Joanasie knows more about what’s
happening in my corporation than I do. He
is correct, we do actually have a beneficiary
in the program working on her bachelor of
administration, or business program, and
that program is a joint Grant MacEwan
Community College/Nunavut Arctic
College program. Specifically to your
question, Member Joanasie, | am not sure if
we have an agreement but I can certainly
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follow up on that. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. The reason why | brought up
this question is because this question has
been brought up in the House and since we
are placing priority hiring on beneficiaries,
and usually there is an agreement or a close
working relationship with the training or
educational facilities, whether it is here in
Nunavut or outside of it.

And, along that line, Mr. Ma probably
knows about this, we had the Languages
Commissioner in front of the committee
yesterday, and we were talking about
employment and education and so on.
Maybe | will just say this as a statement, but
whether it is Qullig Energy Corporation, or
one of the entities or departments.

My question is what kind of language skills
are required? I am sure you will have to
work with the Minister of Languages, and
we would like to see that included in your
report, in your annual report.

Regarding the capital projects, it indicates
here that Taloyoak and Qikiqtarjuag will be
getting new power plants. In appendix A,
2014-15, it indicates that they will cost
approximately five million dollars, or a little
bit over that, that’s an estimate. It also
indicates that the Cape Dorset power plant
will cost approximately $25 million. Could
you elaborate on the figures, because there
is such a discrepancy between the first and
the second? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. Mr.
Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That is
actually a really good question. I think
earlier this morning | alluded to some work
that we have to do in terms of our capital
planning and reporting process. | think I had
also indicated that this the first time we had
a major capital program within the
corporation, and quite honestly, that poses
challenges.

While on the one hand, it was really good
that the board and the corporation was
willing to go forward with the capital
expansion program, I don’t think we
realized what it really took to do this type of
work. This is very similar to the experience
that the GN took when it increased this
capital budget. We had challenges in the GN
in terms of managing all the different
projects and what we have found in the last
several months, is that we have some
challenges in terms of how to manage our
capital projects. This morning I indicated
that the board had directed us, as the
management team, to speak to the
Department of Community and Government
Services and to our sister corporation in the
Northwest Territories.

What we’re finding is that sometimes we’re
not planning as well as we should. We don’t
have the plans as complete as they could be.
I can tell you that for both Qikigtarjuag and
Taloyoak, we had to actually go back to the
board in the spring and increase the budgets,
and | can give you those new revised
amounts. The budget from Qikiqtarjuaq is
actually bumped up to $15.4 million. The
budget for Taloyoak is bumped up now to
$14.7 million. So those are significant
increases.

Specifically, to the community of Cape
Dorset, before we can actually determine a
final number, a lot would depend on the
actual design. In my head, | think we have
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to realize that power plant replacements are
going to be in the $15 million to $25 million
range. | think that’s really what the numbers
are going to be. I think we’ve been low
balling the numbers to our detriment.

Obviously, I have concerns with that,
because we have a $74 million financing
agreement with the CIBC. The corporation
really has to be sure now that all these
projects in the capital plan are going to be
within those budgets that we have. If they’re
not, we have to come back with a plan to the
board. That’s certainly what they’ve
directed me to do in the fall board meeting,
as I’ve indicated. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. 1 also would like to thank
Mr. Ma for his response. | have talked about
Kimmirut needing a generator. In the QEC
annual report on page 22 it states that you
did a study in Cape Dorset in the fall of
2012 on the wind generator. What were the
results of this study? Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
studies were completed this past year. |
would say probably at best the results at this
point in time are inconclusive.

There were challenges with setting up the
wind turbines and do all the measurements.
It’s not quite as well as we had hoped. Right
now we’re sitting with the engineering
group to determine what our next step
should be.

Obviously, if we can do alternative energy,
it would be a lot better than building more
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diesel power plants. It is something that
we’d really like to try to pursue, but I have
to honestly say, at this point, | would say
probably the results are inconclusive, just
due to the nature of the way the testing was
done. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. How much funding did they

utilize for this study? I’1l just leave it at that.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me
see if [ have that number. I don’t have that
number, but | can make a commitment to
the Member to provide that information to
you all. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | will want to hear about
that. | am sure Mr. Ma is aware that | tabled
a petition here at the Legislative Assembly
in regard to the power plant in Cape Dorset
on June 16. The Minister met with the
hamlet council and they had agreed to the
site, but 1 would like to get an update or
would it be better to ask the Minister in
regard to this issue? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
that my Minister was actually going to send
you a letter, but I understand that the
airplane went mechanical on its way back
from Baker Lake yesterday, so I’ll give you
the update.

Since the June meetings between the hamlet
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council and you, there have been some
developments. Actually, we have been in
the process of working with the hamlet’s
legal counsel in moving this line issue
forward. We have reached an agreement at
this point in time, even though the legal title
hasn’t passed to the hamlet and then onto us,
that we will begin geotechnical studies on
the site this year. That’s actually really
accommodating of the hamlet council to
allow us to do that.

We’re hoping to get the geotechnical studies
done during the month of October. I don’t
remember the cost off hand, but it’s
probably about $50,000 that was spent on
geotechnical and that will at least guide us
in terms of the plant design for Cape Dorset.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | would also like to thank
you for the clarification on the development
of this and I will monitor it very closely.

I would like to get back to employee
training. In your plan, in English, it states,
(interpretation ends) under Inuit
employment development plans, it says that
you’re completing a development plan
process that helps to ensure employees have
knowledge, skills, leadership, competencies,
and abilities to achieve these individual
career and organizational goals.

(interpretation) With that, do | understand,
for example, some staff members don’t have
that kind of training? | hope that | came
across clearly, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. Mr.
Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’ll try
to provide some clarity on that paragraph on
page 10.

What we try to do is give our employees
additional training in different areas. For
example, in May, we had basically a
corporate-wide communications workshop
here in lgaluit and that was followed up
with one in Baker Lake, I think, in August.
That communication and skills training was
also about leadership because how we
communicate, in a way, reflects how we are
as leaders. For example, I’m not too shy, so
I’'m probably a lot more forthright and more
direct than, perhaps, other people.

It helps you understand yourself and if you
can, when you’re communicating,
understand how the other individual that
you’re communicating with is
communicating to you, you might know
their style, so that then maybe helps you
adjust the way you communicate. For
example, it’s probably not a good idea to tell
my Minister that I don’t like his tie or
whatever that day. There’s a better way to
maybe say, “Gee, you know, maybe red
doesn’t go so well with green,” or
something. It’s that kind of thing. You learn
about how to communicate and how to lead.

We have different modules that we have to
support our staff and those are ongoing
things. Our staff also take time after each
part of training to identify how well that
training module worked for them or not
because we should always try to improve.
The second thing too is that they themselves
sit down and decide what things that they
think they need some help on and that’s why
it’s self-directed. We try to support our
employees as much as we can.

I think if you’re serious about training, you
have to take a little bit of that initiative
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yourself and that gets back to what |
consider the leadership side of it. No matter
who we are and at what stage in our lives,
we can always improve. | know for me there
are always things I can work on to be better
as a leader within our corporation. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. | would also like to thank
you for your response, Mr. Ma. | would also
like to ask another question. You wrote a
letter to me in May that Kimmirut gen. sets
plan that they needed to replace that
equipment but that’s been deferred and
you’ve already ordered that part. But once
the mechanics started reviewing the
generator they realized that the equipment
that was sent to Kimmirut was too large to
install. Maybe it was due to lack of planning
properly that this occurred. If you can tell
me what exactly occurred for this incident to
occur in Kimmirut because the generator
had to be used by Sanikiluaq instead. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Joanasie. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
I’ve been pretty forthright and pretty honest
in saying some of the deficiencies, I think |
used that word in my opening comments
that the corporation has. | would say that
one of deficiencies that we’ve encountered
since I’ve been there is our capital planning
and reporting process which is why | spent
some time trying to talk through that. This is
relatively new for the corporation, a $74
million capital plan.

So like I said earlier, while it was a good
idea and will have benefits that will be good
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for Nunavummiut I think we didn’t have all
the resources in place to implement the plan
properly. For example, one of the
weaknesses that we have in this place in
time, is we don’t have a full, at least when I
got there we didn’t have a full engineering
compliment. That’s critical to have the
engineers because they do all the planning
and types of calculations that us accountants
can’t do.

Since the end of August, maybe the early
part of September, I think we’re fully
staffed up in the engineering department and
that’s really critical as we go forward with
the capital plan. As Member Joanasie
indicated, when we initially planned the
Kimmirut gen. sets replacement, we planned
for an oversized gen. set. As a result,
because we had already tendered and made
the financial commitment to purchase that
gen. set we redirected that gen. set to
Sanikiluag which was also in need of a gen.
set replacement eventually anyways. We
have now since re-tendered the gen. set
replacement in Kimmirut and it should be
installed next year in 2015-16.

I’d like to also point out something to
members while I have this opportunity with
this question, one of the process changes
that we’ve made that is similar to the GN
now is in the GN if there are significant
changes in the capital plan, we notify by
way of a letter to that particular Member
that’s affected so QEC probably didn’t do
this in the past to my knowledge. In this
instance | wrote a letter to both Member
Rumbolt and Member Joanasie so they
would at least be aware of it and if they had
questions they could certainly speak to the
corporation or myself about that. | think
that’s another step in our goal towards
transparency, integrity, and accountability
and all those things. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your
response. | was very appreciative of the fact
that you wrote a letter to me to inform me of
this incident. | was able to inform my
constituents of Kimmirut.

We always want to get understanding where
the community is standing no matter what is
being developed. I’'m very pleased that this
communication line is open.

I would also like to reiterate, this will be just
a comment in regard to the hydroelectric
project. | know that this hydroelectric
project can service Igaluit and Kimmirut,
especially there is a route where
Kimmirummiut travel back and forth
between Igaluit and Kimmirut. | just want
you to consider that part. If you can inform
the residents of Kimmirut in regard to the
hydroelectric project. If you can include the
residents of Kimmirut about consulting with
them in regard to this project.

As the Member, once | get the information
from you, I will relay that information to my
constituents. Thank you for your response. |
also would like to thank Mr. Ma and the
minister for this. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma, do you
want to respond?

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes,
I’ll certainly make sure we inform the
residents of Kimmirut. As I indicated to
Member Angnakak this morning on the
helicopter tour, it was a different perspective
being in the air, | an appreciate the impact
that it may have on the Kimmirut Trail a lot
more now that I’ve been in the air. When
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you drive it, you see it differently. When |
was in the air [ was like, “Okay. I get it
now.” That was, for me, really an eye
opener. Yes, we will certainly the residents
of Kimmirut informed. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Go to the
next name on my list. Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Sammurtok: On page 14 of the Qulliq
Energy Corporation’s 2014-18 corporate
plan indicates that one of its current
initiatives is to reduce Nunavut’s
dependence on fossil fuels and is the
creation of an Arctic Wind Testing Facility.
Could you elaborate a little more on the
Arctic Wind Testing Facility?
(interpretation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That’s
one project I’m not that familiar with. I'm
hoping I have a note on that. No, I’ll have to
get back to the Member. I don’t have
anything on the wind, | have something on
the solar project that’s happening in Arviat.
I will make a note to myself to do that.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I’m sure
Mr. Sammurtok, as well as all of us, will be
looking forward to that information. Mr.
Sammurtok.

Mr. Sammurtok: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The reason | was asking that is
that | thought it would be something similar
to the wind power electricity generating
equipment that they installed in Rankin Inlet
in the previous year. That is the question
that I was asking. (interpretation) Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: If | understand that correctly, |
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believe that wind generation system in
Rankin Inlet has failed and been taken
down. Maybe, Mr. Ma, if | may ask on Mr.
Sammurtok’s behalf. Is there another project
looking at replacing that? What type of
information was garnered from that project
that would show the feasibility of using
wind energy in Nunavut? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
apologize, both to yourself and to Member
Sammurtok. | do have a note on the Arctic
Wind Testing Facility in Arviat. Apparently,
this was a concept that was discussed in
2009. At this point, there has been no
feasibility study done to date. This idea,
apparently, came from a discussion between
PEI and QEC. The idea was that this would
create some job opportunities and contribute
to community economic development.

Nonetheless, because I’m not so familiar
with this particular project, | would like to
investigate it further when | get back to the
office. I probably will report back to the
Member. I think | would feel better if | did
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Savikataaqg.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Just to add on the wind test facility in
Arviat, it’s in the corporate plan, so I
assume that it will go ahead because we’re
windy enough and we need it.

An Hon. Member: We know.

Mr. Savikataaq: But on your plan there,
when you talk about alternative energy and
how to be cleaner, is there a system set up or
is it possible to where a homeowner can get
a small windmill or wind turbine or solar
panels and run it directly into the meter
professionally done so that the meter can go
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backwards? At times, it wouldn’t make
much difference, but at other times, it may
run the meter back, depending on the power
consumption. Is there anything set up for
that? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataaq. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In fact,
we are investigating that type of possibility.
| think, in our corporate plan and our
reports, we’re calling it a net metering
policy. We’re in the early days. We have
looked at what other jurisdictions are doing.
For example, we have looked at the
Manitoba model and the Northwest
Territories model.

If I’'m correct, I think the Northwest
Territories just started this concept about a
year ago. We have to make sure that if we
go towards something like this, like you just
said, the equipment is integrated into our
system properly so that we don’t, in turn,
have a failure and then everybody is without
power. It’s certainly something that we’re
looking at.

We’re calling it a net metering policy. It was
something that | was hoping we could take
to our alternative energy committee in the
fall here. I know that our legal counsel has
reviewed the current concept. | know that
our engineering team has done quite an
amount of jurisdictional review and
scanning on this. | have to be honest, as the
president, | have not had the time yet to
actually look at this and review it in detail,
but I hope to so that we can bring it to the
fall board meeting because it’s something
the board itself has also indicated as a
priority from their perspective. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
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Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I’'m glad that it’s a priority for the board.

On a different matter, this was brought up
and you commented on it about the bad
debts’ write-off. You said that before you
put limiting meters or cut someone off, you
exhaust all other options, which is
understandable, but the question | have is |
was looking at the figures there, bad debt
write-offs, and you could tell that some of
them are residential people and they’re
substantially high. What are your criteria
before someone is cut off? Is it if they
haven’t paid for a certain time or is it a
certain amount? You must have criteria to
cut someone off. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m
just trying to find the right notes for this.

This might be a little bit boring, but I’ll try
to kind of summarize this as best I can.
Basically, we consider an account to be in
arrears after 30 days it has been unpaid after
the bill due date. We basically can then at
that point issue a 48-hour notice of
electricity disconnection to the customer.
The next step then is if the customer fails to
provide a payment or make arrangements
for payment after the 48-hour notice, we can
then proceed to disconnect the customer.

There are options, especially during the
winter months. From September 1 to March
31 are what we consider to be winter
months. We could install a load limiter at
least to have some power to the residence.

If we can’t reach payment arrangements,
then really we have no choice except to take
the load limiter off and go towards what we
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call full disconnection. However, before we
go to full disconnection, the customer has
72 hours to have the opportunity to
winterize their residence. We obviously
don’t want people to have their houses
freezing up if we can avoid that.

That’s basically the process in terms of
leading towards disconnection and then we
try to collect if we can through the courts or
through our collections people within the
corporation. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Savikataaq.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
How do | phrase this; does it appear that
putting limiting meters make people pay
their arrears? Or does it have no affect on
collecting payment? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
it does have some impact. | know that in my
short time at the corporation | have had a
few customers call me, and | have said, well
you know, you are just like everybody else,
and you got to pay your bills. I know those
people probably weren’t very happy with
me, but in the end they did make payment
arrangements to pay their accounts.

But I think sometimes too, even though our
customers want to pay their bills, they may
have financial circumstances beyond their
control. That’s why we try to accommodate
them. We don’t advertise this widely but if a
customer does enter into a payment
arrangement with us we can waive interest
charges for example and try to
accommodate them. But I think that it is
incumbent upon customers to pay their bills.
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| personally find it hard to have to do it to
residential customers because often times
they have some circumstances. At the same
time we are also now really trying to collect
from our business customers too, because
you would be surprised at some of the
names that are out there that are not paying
us. [ don’t want to say it’s disappointing, but
certainly better efforts have to be made by
those businesses to get their bills paid.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
On the same subject, | assume you take all
measures to collect, like garnishing their
wages or stuff like that? Because some
people financially can’t do it and there is not
much that can be done about those, but
there’s others that may be able to pay, and
it’s not fair for the ones that pay. I think the
more non-paying customers you have... it’s
just like a big snowball rolling down the
hill. If they see that someone else can get
away with having their debts written-off and
maybe reapply for power under different
name, or whatever the process is. Do you
take all measures to collect? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just to
add some background too, I think you are
right. In some ways we were sort of our own
worst enemy. In the past we probably didn’t
make the effort to collect and of course then
people just don’t pay. If you don’t call
someone up and say you’ve got to pay me,
they are not going to pay you. | would say in
the last year or so we have made a real
concerted effort to collect from both
residential and commercial customers. So
this is a warning, | guess, customers pay
your bills because we are coming after you.

Cbd<d PPdDA%QAC A5 SbDLL®dNGC
ADSbECIC APEN<SbAYLLC ASBALL CLbd<
AL5H®IC, Ac_*abdt Pl PayPinc
ARNM<OJ A APESHECHMLC. CAL®a. Cbd<
Sg<ehPNNLYP<NE CLeddd IPE/Le*NeDC
PedCSL*LC. <bAPbb*or b5 LC Cbd<
allon >N APELALSHNE Sh>LLSdN o¢
Dse/LLMeab. Sdyal, AbYRUDCS.

AP/ XPCSe (OLANJO): Sdy*al™®. C NAbCs®,

LALCSe (ONNNUO): Sdal™, AbYRDCE®,
C3RTMA*a®, CALSBA Sb.oDA*a cLeN<se
ONLADHECSHL®PAY Pabyad A

Pa DAL N ASIAD>HECT® 5N 5GC,
AN PaPYPINSLC Cod<d ANSeC><L_o<C
APENCHLAPNSe, CLed<de IPEJ*a stILo<C
AS 5 IPENCPSBECADHILC Ay

QY RCAINGHICIAQSLE A>C A5
AYCC>P/Loo A bbbl

QYL RECIDA% A AYLLE, Sb.oDA*a LY
APENNLALTBECSHABAL? Sdyeal™,

AP/ RDCs®,

AbYPCSe (ONMNJO): sdv2al’. MC L.

L OLNNJ): Sdveal®, AYRDCS, A, C*a
ACYLE>NE A¢ *abdC PRUC qlf g
AbB>E+PP>PNSHBCCSEC CAL Q. IPE*NCIse
C*a dPc*ho < c<5dbeClLe >+ NJ
CASLo. CL%a PPaDSIRCN®DJC <IN
APESHECe Y ALta D<SbeCia<seNd

PEPLE D% P Nb®IC,

101




But you are right, we try to make every
attempt to collect from our customers and
then the worst case scenario we have to cut
them off or take court action. | am not sure
if we garnishee wages, but certainly through
court action we could garnishee wages to
enforce payment.

And you are right, it is not fair to the rate
payers that are paying their bills on time and
are good customers. That’s one of the terms
and conditions of accepting services from
us; you have to pay your bill. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. If | may, Mr.
Savikataag, | noticed you have in your
annual report you have your list of write-
offs, is it something the corporation is
considering, something similar to what the
city of Igaluit does with its tax arrears as
listing the bad offenders? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s
interesting you raised that, we had some
discussion at the board level in the June in-
person board meeting, now that we have
legal counsel back on board its something
we’re going to look at. I don’t think
necessarily it’s a privacy concern, but that
was one thing, [ don’t want to say its public
shame, but certainly if you know your name
is going to be published it sure makes you
take more of an effort to pay your bills for
sure. It’s something that we are examining.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I’'m on
automatic debit, so hopefully my name will
never appear on that list. Mr. Savikataag.

>>| aughter

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Just for clarity for the people that are
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listening and watching; | think you said that
you do not do power cut offs during the
winter months. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As
much as possible we would prefer not to,
but if we have to, we will. That’s when we
give them 72 hours to winterize their
residence. It’s a really last resort option
that’s available to us. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Can you just elaborate on winterize their
house before their power is cut off? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. What it
really means is whatever they can do to
protect their heating and plumbing systems
from the cold so they don’t have burst pipes
and other things. It’s really up to the
customer to do what they can to protect their
investment in their home because at that
point when we go to full connection, that’s
basically it. I don’t know if they get their
own generator and use gas, or whatever
hooks something up to their house. I think
that would be hard. It’s really up to them to
try to do what they can. Hopefully, they
would actually reach a payment plan with us
before we go that far. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Savikataag.

Mr. Savikataaq: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It’s not a question, but just a comment. I
know you guys do all efforts to, as you said
it, collect your arrears. It’s easier to tackle
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the arrears when someone’s arrears are not
so high. When someone’s arrears get so
high that it’s out of control and their options
are pretty limited other than to get power cut
off. I commend you on your guy’s good
work. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Savikataaq. If |
may just to get a little bit more detail. When
you say you contact clients to give them the
72-hour notice to give them some time to
winterize their home. What method of
communication do you use to contact these
clients? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m
just going to see if I’'m right here. I think
they get a phone call. They’re also given a
notice on their door. | am just going to see if
there is additional information or not. | may
have to get back to you. I’ll get back. I'm
pretty sure we call them and we leave a
notice at the door for that.

If I can comment on Member Savikataaq’s
comment. You’re right. We were our worst
enemy because we weren’t going after
people. The problem kept accumulating and
now we’re trying to address it. You’re right
it’s a lot easier to deal with it sooner rather
than later. | appreciate that comment. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I’ll just
make one brief comment on your response
on the communication. Sometimes people
are away from their home and may not have
house sitting arrangements. | would
encourage your corporation to make sure
that you actually get in contact with
someone before the power does get shut off.
| can speak from some experience from
constituency concerns that it doesn’t always
work.

I’ll go to the next name on my list. Mr.
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Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
just want a couple of clarifications on
questions that were asked earlier. During my
question this morning | asked about the
power corporation’s fuel storage facilities in
the communities. This afternoon Mr. Ma
said that all communities have fuel storage
facilities in them. | am aware that they do
have storage facilities near the power plant,
and they vary in the amount of time they can
last, whether it is days, or weeks, or months.

| was asking if there were any communities
that have fuel storage facilities that allow or
require the power corporation to do their
own purchasing of fuel? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
appreciate the clarification from the
Member. No, to my knowledge, there is not.
| will confirm that. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
There was some discussion earlier about
budgets and how they get approved. I’'m just
wondering: to what extent did the actual
decision-making... ? I’'m sorry. That’s a
different question. To what extent did the
actual decision-making authorities of the
QEC board of directors differ from those of
the Nunavut Housing Corporation
considering that they both have a board of
directors? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma, I’'m sure
that you might have to put on one of your
previous hat of your previous life to answer
that, but your experience and input would be
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appreciated.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Actually, Member Rumbolt has be stumped
here. | have been a board member on
Nunavut Arctic College and the Nunavut
Business Credit Corporation, and just
because the board of the Nunavut Housing
Corporation is relatively new, I'm actually
not sure, but I can certainly follow up on
that. That’s actually a really good question;
I don’t know the answer to that, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My next question is on the budget process.
It seemed, from answers that you were
giving earlier about the Financial
Management Board and cabinet make the
actual decisions to approve QEC’s budgets
and corporate plans, why is the board of
directors’ layer necessary in this process?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’ll see
if I can explain this. The corporation was set
up so that it would have some autonomy to
make some decisions independent of
government, but it’s certainly consistent
with government policies and direction.

Having said that, once the board approves a
particular budget or other activities, | think
you still have to have a certain amount of
governance, | guess for a lack of a better
word, and that governance or oversight then
would come from the Executive Council or
the Minister. I think that’s the reason for
that. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. The
Member from Baker Lake, Mr.
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Mikkungwak, gets round two.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman. One of my colleagues earlier
triggered my mind here. Earlier when you
were responding to the write-offs, is there a
different amount that you determine for a
write-off for a private homeowner as
opposed to a business with bad debt and
what are those amounts? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To my
knowledge, they’re treated the same, that
there is no difference. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Who determines as to who gets a
write-off? Is it the president, the QEC board,
the Minister, or FMB? Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My
memory bank has just gone dead. | may
have this wrong, so I’ll give you what |
think the answer is and check it back in the
office. There are different limits. For $500
or lower, I think I have the authority. |
think, beyond $500, we have to go to the
board. I think, any amounts over $20,000,
we have to take it to the Financial
Management Board. It’s in our legislation
and I just don’t have it handy with me, but |
will look it up and have it get that back to
you for sure. There are different thresholds.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation): Thank
you very much, Mr. Chairman. The reason
why | am querying you about this matter is
earlier, when my colleague was asking
questions, it reminded me of our community
where we have numerous elders.

Some of the elders previously held good
jobs, and upon becoming unemployed, they
are faced with bills with some power bills
being extremely high. They face this
challenge without a job to pay for these
large debts.

It is obvious that some of the large bills are
detrimental to elders as | know some people
in Baker Lake, especially within the last two
years and in particular over one calendar
year, the price increased five times. This
bumped up the bills owed by people;
however, this became more problematic for
many people.

What of those people who are faced with a
large power bill, but they require a breathing
apparatus to survive. With certain medical
equipment, is there any kind of energy-
saving device or limiter? A colleague was
speaking to this issue earlier and some of
our constituents are faced with this exact
situation in our communities.

Have you taken these types of
circumstances into consideration?
Particularly where the health centre has
made the equipment mandatory for their
patients, especially breathing machines that
require electrical power, so how can we
provide our elders with assistance from
Qullig Energy Corporation to residents in
need? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
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Are you talking about load limiters, or
disconnection? Load limiter?

Mr. Mikkungwak: Both.
Chairman: Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Hopefully, I’ve understood the question
correctly. Do we consider the circumstances
of someone who depends on oxygen tanks
different than other customers? I think the
direct answer to your question is no,
because under the current customer classes,
we only have four types. We probably
would not recognize it.

Having said you raise a really valid
question. My memory could be wrong
because | have not been in the Department
of Finance for a while. I think we also have
a fuel subsidy program for seniors within
the Government of Nunavut. | can certainly
follow-up on that. Seniors probably could
apply for some relief, at least, through that
program. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. The reason why | asked that
question is not all people are eligible for that
Senior Fuel Subsidy Program, and yet they
have lost their career, and due to their
medical condition are having to use an
oxygen tank. Seeing that they are no longer
employed and cannot pay their bad debt,
would you consider that a write off so that
they cannot be on the load limiter,
considering the fact that they have to use an
oxygen tank, which requires electricity?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak. I
think we’re treading on some thin ice here.
Mr. Ma, if you want to respond to that.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
understand where the Member is coming
from. I think it’s a matter that we need to
examine before | can give you a
comprehensive answer. Having said that, |
can certainly speak to whichever department
is responsible for the senior fuel rebate
program. Maybe it’s time that they need to
review that program and change the
thresholds. I can’t speak for them, but I can
certainly have the conversation with them.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation): Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. | thank Mr. Ma for his
response. This issue is something | am
ardently trying to resolve, and as a matter of
fact, | have raised the issue in the House and
raised guestions about the matter. However,
| will move onto another matter. My
colleagues here have brought up alternative
energy generation methods in trying to
come up with ideas. This is another matter
for consideration.

Having grown up in Nunavut as a child up
to being an adult now, | have seen various
projects where DFO built cabins in the
interior and they have existed for many
years and on the roof of these cabins, they
put up (interpretation ends) solar panels
(interpretation) that provide electricity.

Although we have blizzards and really bad
weather, these panels have never broken and
continue to provide electricity to the cabins
that are monitoring the waters in the
interior. Has this type of alternative energy
been considered by the corporation? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes,
we have and | think that in some of my
answers earlier, I didn’t provide enough
clarity.

One of the changes that we have made
recently is that we have, I think we’re
calling it, an energy management unit within
our engineering department. We actually
have two individuals and they’re dedicated
to working basically solely on alternative
energy. I just don’t remember you asking
the question, but | had also replied that
we’re working on a net metering policy.

At this point, and don’t hold me to this,
we’re actually considering even here in
Igaluit of maybe doing a little pilot project
of solar just to see what it does within the
system and hopefully learn from that.
Certainly, there’s a lot of interest both by
the board and the Minister in terms of
alternative energy. During my tenure, we
will hopefully make some progress in this
area because we can’t continue to rely solely
on diesel. We’ve got to find other ways to
generate power. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation): Thank
you very much, Mr. Chairman.
(interpretation ends) I think that would be a
worthwhile investment for future energy
plans for possibly private homeowners or
public housing units and whatnot.

This morning, | had asked a question about
remediation and | would like to further go in
depth in that considering the fact that the old
site in Baker Lake and as you noted this
morning, it’s one of the larger projects for
site remediation and considering that it’s
sloping down into our freshwater lake, our
drinking water. When do you deem as an
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organization and consider it a high priority
for the federal government to act on when
it’s going to impact our drinking water?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
that it is a priority even as we speak. | think,
as | indicated, maybe it’s not the nicest way
to break in the new regional director, but I
think that we need to have the conversation
with that individual. 1 would like to maybe
make a couple of comments on this.

The Hamlet of Baker Lake has been a really
good partner in terms of the remediation
process in terms of what has been
happening. Well, you’re from there and you
probably know that what we call the
Waterloo Emitter barrier has been working
really well. 1 think | have a status report
here that this year, again, it’s working.

This has been ongoing, | think, for about
five or six years now. I don’t remember

exactly, but you’re right, it has been a while.

It’s sort of like collections, right? If you
kind of leave it, it gets to the point where all
of a sudden it’s a big problem that you need
to deal with. To answer your question in
short, we need to have a conversation with
AANDC as quickly as we can. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Do you foresee future meetings
also with the community and people of
Baker Lake regarding this matter? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m
just going to go back to your previous
question as well. Even if we engage in a
conversation with AANDC, those guys are
really good at stonewalling and stalling the
process. Even if we engage it, it’s probably
going to take some time and that’s why |
think we need to engage in that process.

With respect to speaking to the hamlet and
the community, yes, certainly, we would do
that. I think I may have indicated that we’re
hoping to be in Baker Lake for the spring
board meeting, so that would be in March of
2015. That is the current plan to be in Baker
Lake. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Ma. The
questions have been quite clear and I’'m
happy. | am quite pleased with that, and you
kept saying that every once in awhile you
will come back to us.

| would like to ask about looking for
financial resources. Whenever you make
new power plants or garages to store
equipment and vehicles, how, in relation to
your own buildings, when their useful
lifecycles have ended when could you
dismantle them? In Pond Inlet the power
corporation has a very old power plant
which is closed. Do you have, in the future,
any plans about dismantling things of this
nature? Eyesores. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You
raise a really relevant issue and the reason |
say that is that earlier this morning I spoke a
bit about some of the changes in accounting
status for potential environmental liabilities.
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One of the changes that was made effective
April 1 of this year, is that when there is no
longer a use for a particular facility, and
there is a potential environmental liability,
you have to recognize that in your financial
statements. And that is a concern for us. As
everybody knows, a lot of our facilities are
upwards of forty years plus, and probably
have potential environmental liabilities from
the past.

To be quite honest at this point in time we
are struggling with how to deal with this
because we’ve got to find a balance in terms
of a policy that recognizes the new
accounting standard, and the needs of our
operations, and the needs of the community.
I’1l be honest at this point we just started
doing early work on this year because of the
new accounting standard. At this point |
don’t really have an answer for you but
certainly we can keep you updated in that
regards. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. And thank you for the answer
you provided and we look forward to
additions to that being made in the future.

I would like to also ask for clarification in
relation to health issues; people who depend
on health facilitating equipment and some of
them, as one of my colleagues said, some of
those people who take those life support
systems tend to lose their jobs and they have
no income. All of a sudden they have no
more income. So | urge you, and your
board, to discuss this health issue.

Since those who go on portable life support
systems that use power need to use them
perpetually. So I would urge that you would
consider this carefully along with your
board. And | wanted to remind you in urgent
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terms that you pay attention to this. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman. That is all that | have
got.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Enook. Mr. Ma
if you want to respond to that.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just
really quickly, both you and Member
Nugingaq raised a good issue that I’ve never
even thought about. I’ve actually got a little
note here. I don’t know whether that means
we change customer classes by adding one
or whether we have a discussion with
department that is responsible for that
program to change some things, but it’s on
my radar screen, for sure, you have just
bumped it up for me. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I don’t
have any more names on my list. | guess
that means | get to go to my little notes that
I’ve been taking throughout the day. I do
have a couple of questions. | would like to
go back to the site remediation. As you’re
well aware, just recently the City of Igaluit
had a little occurrence with, as it was
coined, “dumpcano.” The city sat on the
issue until such time as accessing funds to
remediate that project weren’t available
where they had to fund from within. In your
opinion, is this lack of dialogue with federal
agencies on these remediation sites
contributing to potential health hazards for
our residents? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A good
question. Probably it’s not adding because
the sites are contained to our employees, so
| guess their health would be affected. Not
so much other residents.

I can’t speak to all communities, I’ve been
to every community but I can’t speak of
exact location of every community. Having
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said that, you do raise a good point, and |
think that is to have the conversation with
Canada sooner rather than later. It’s a point
that others have made today, and it’s
certainly a point that | take to heart. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Like you
stated, there is some technology being used
in Baker Lake, as an example, but it is an
ongoing concern. You can say to yourself it
may get worse.

You provided an information package and |
have been involved in that project in my
previous life. Is that site now set in stone? |
know there were previous community
consultations and there were a number of
different options provided. I still to this day
have people coming to me saying that the
wrong site was chosen. Can you respond,
please? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s
interesting you raise the question. Both
Jamie and | have had several conversations
around this. So I think while those two are
the preferred sites, | think we are given
serious consideration to re-examining some
other sites. Certainly, in our discussions
with the Minister, that’s something that he
has indicated as well if we can re-examine
some of the other sites, it may lead us to a
different conclusion. At this point we’re in
the early days of that process. Once we’ve
moved further along, | would be more than
happy to provide an update to you and to the
Members. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Thank you
for that response. It does kind of lead me
down a similar path. Would all the pre-
feasibility and feasibility work that’s been
done to date, would that have to start anew?
Where are you in the NIRB process right
now on this project? Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | would
probably say at this point that there has been
enough work done to facilitate different
thinking and different options. So I don’t
think we’d have to invest a whole lot of
additional money. At this point because
we’re in a hold/investigate other
possibilities pattern; we’ve not initiated the
NIRB process. We have indicated to them at
some point we will do that. | think we may
have corresponded with them as early a
couple of months ago. I just don’t remember
which month that we actually had some
correspondence with them. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. | am going
to switch gears and go into fuel pricing and
the impact on QEC costs. As I’'m sure
you’re aware, just before the last
government changed over, there was a
freeze on fuel pricing and the impact that
had on QEC. Although it froze the price for
the average consumer, the way | understand
it, and please correct me if I'm wrong, is
that the fuel prices did increase for the
Qullig Energy Corporation, which brought
in a demand for a fuel rider, which 1 got a
lot of questions on during my campaign.
Fuel price is frozen why is there a fuel rider
needed? Maybe if you could help educate
myself on that? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | may
have this wrong, but I’ll make an attempt.
Even though fuel prices were, perhaps,
frozen for the other consumers, there is a
slightly different rate for the Qulliq Energy
Corporation and it varies community by
community. That obviously would have an
impact to our customers and our rate base.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. One thing
that | noticed earlier too and it was brought
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to my attention that during the Nunavut
Energy Strategy that was tabled in 2007, it
had indicated that QEC and the Department
of CG&S was reviewing the business and
working relationship between QEC and
PPD. What specific improvements to the
working relationship between QEC and PPD
have been made in recent years?

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
that a lot of that centred around what you
just alluded to, the fuel pricing and working
better together in terms of coordinating fuel
purchases.

| would probably say at this point and
maybe it’s not fair of me to comment on
other colleagues that have preceded me both
here and at the Department of Community
and Government Services, but | would say
that the progress probably hasn’t been as
much as it could be. I think that Deputy
Green, who is the deputy head for
Community and Government Services, and |
are certainly going to try to engage more.

| know that it has been a challenge for us to
even get the fuel prices for this upcoming
sealift season and that’s something that we
have to work on. | think that one positive
thing that has come out of all this is that
there was a repayment schedule that was
agreed to both by CGS and QEC, but it just
recently expired. We have not had a
conversation with CGS since the expiration
of that agreement, but that’s something we
can have a discussion on.

Unrelated to power but sort of related to
power, | guess, there was a working
arrangement between CGS and QEC with
something called the WAN-LAN-MAN
project and that was an upgrade to the
government’s information technology
infrastructure. That was back when | was at
the Department of Finance. What that
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arrangement basically was, was that the
Qullig Energy Corporation, as it was doing
things on its power plants or whatever, it
would also help the government put up fibre
optics to upgrade its IT system.

There have been some things, but perhaps
there could be more. Hopefully we can do
more together, both CGS and ourselves,
because we’re in the same business in some
ways. We’re kind of dependent on them and
they’re kind of dependent on us on the fuel
side of it. I'm hoping that we can have some
conversations that will move us further
along in that regard. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. | do have a
couple of more questions, but I just had a
name added to my list. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’1l go back to one of the questions I asked
earlier today just to get a little more detail
when | was talking about the main power
plant expansion here in Igaluit and the
URRC stated that the increase in costs for
these capital projects provided “grossly
misleading signals to consumers” of QEC.
Can he explain exactly what that means?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m not
entirely clear as to what URRC meant by
that and I can certainly have the
conversation with them, but my conjecture
would be that I think publicly we had been
saying that the cost of the expansion was
going to be a certain amount and I think that
at the end of the day, it was significantly
more than that. I think that at the time that
we were doing the general rate application,
we had provided some numbers to URRC,
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which | think led to their statement.

What | can tell you is that the original
budget and where we ended up were vastly
different, and that’s part of why I was
talking about capital planning and reporting
because that certainly opened my eyes to the
whole process within the corporation and
how I think we can make some
improvements in that regard. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
You talked about the original budget for the
main power plant expansion compared to
the overall cost. What was the original
budget and what was the final cost on this?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I’'m
just going to grab the number here.

The original budget for the project was $28
million. We ended up around $40 million.
It’s a $12 million overage which is about
just under 50 percent. It is significant. Some
of the factors, which is probably your next
question, we could have done better
planning. | understand some of the design
work wasn’t done on time. This is why I’'m
really focused on doing a better capital
planning process and reporting process
because that is a significant number. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Mr. Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
When it comes to other departments, for
example like CGS, if they run into cost
overruns in a certain project they have to
seek approval of more funds from cabinet
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using that process. What process does QEC
use if they overspend on a budget and they
require more funds, for example for the
main power plant expansion? How do they
require the extra funds for this? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: That’s a good question. What
kind of supplementary appropriation does
QEC have? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s a
bit difficult for me to tell you what
happened in the past because I wasn’t there.
| can tell you what the process is now that
I’ve implemented. We have taken the GN
process through the financial administration
manual for any potential cost overages. Now
we have to work on our own policy. At this
point in time, in my view, where there’s a
significant overage we’ve taken it back to
the board for approval and we’ve had to
explain everything.

That happened both in the case of
Qikigtarjuaq, Taloyoak, and even though
there was no change in the budget per se
because of the swap of the gen. sets for
Kimmirut and Sanikiluaqg we also took that
to the board.

Having said that, we’ve also kept the
minister and indirectly the Financial
Management Board informed. I’ve had
conversations with the Deputy Minister of
Finance. But the process as it unfolds now
will be that we will get the board’s approval
and we will also provide quarterly updates
to the Financial Management Board in this
regard. That’s the process as it sits today.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Actually if
Mr. Rumbolt will indulge me, can you just
clarify again if we’re going back to a little
confusion between the board of directors of
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QEC and the Financial Management Board?
Did both have to get notified of this cost
overage? And who is ultimately has to
approve it? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At this
point in time any overages have been
approved by the board of directors. In
directly through the Deputy Minister of
Finance we have advised them of any
changes to the budget.

Perhaps I should explain it a little more
clearly. I think the process is going to be
that every quarter we will also provide a
report. We already do this now to the
Financial Management Board. We’ll get
them to approve any significant variances as
well. There’s a balance between keeping the
FMB involved and informed and continue
with your projects because sometimes if you
stop then it’s costing you more. We’ve got
to find that balance and still be accountable.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. My
apologies, Mr. Rumbolt. Please continue.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
No apologies needed, if you see a question
you feel needs to be asked that’s fine by me.

You alluded to my next question. | was
wondering if there were other communities
that have capital projects with cost overruns.
You mentioned a few. I’'m wondering if you
can give us some more details on the kind of
cost overruns with other capital projects.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At this
point in time I think I indicated that we’re
doing a thorough review of all the capital
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projects in terms of their status as of 2013-
14. In other words, at the end of the day on
March 31, 2014 that review has basically
been done and we will bring it forward to
the board. Other than the ones | have
mentioned, Taloyoak and Qikigtarjuaq are
the two major ones. We did gen. set swaps
with Sanikiluaq and Kimmirut. Those are
the major ones.

There have been some pluses and minuses
but not significant. At the end of the day, I
think we’re probably looking at a net
increase of about $2 million. | have not
looked at the report in the kind of detail as |
had hoped before the appearance here, but
it’s something I hope to do when I get back
to the office this week because it is
something that is a priority both for the
board and me in terms of where we’re
heading with this. I could say that’s why I
have emphasized a lot of discussion today
on capital planning and capital reporting.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Rumbolt.

Mr. Rumbolt: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I’'m sure that QEC is no different than other
government departments when it comes to
capital carryovers. | know that in other
departments, the process for capital
carryovers is they have to get approved and
re-approved to continue on with these
projects. What is the process used for QEC
when it comes to capital carryovers? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Rumbolt. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think

that | politely tried to say that we lack some

processes and that’s why I have been talking
about capital planning and reporting. |
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would say that probably in the past, there
was probably not a process for doing this.

As we go forward into 2015-16, we’re going
to treat our capital plan the way the GN
does. In other words, | want to know where
we are with every capital project and if
we’re not started, why we haven’t started
and we intend to start. Certainly, the board
would then have to re-approve because if we
haven’t started, maybe it’s not that
important. The board would have to re-
approve those budgets for those particular
projects.

The other thing | would say too in this
regard is that we continue to develop the
process within QEC. You’re right. At this
point in time, from what I’m seeing, we do
have some projects that have not started. We
have to maybe rethink the capital plan. My
personal view at this point in time is that |
would rather not take on any additional new
projects.

We’ve got to finish what we start and part of
the reason for saying that is | had alluded
earlier to the fact that up until recently, we
lacked the engineering resources as well.
You’ve got to not just have the financial
resources to do it, but you’ve got to have the
human resources and the ability to carry out
your capital plans. Those are important
things, I think, in terms of delivering on a
capital plan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak, round three.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. It must be a great day to get
round three.

Earlier in response to one of my questions,
you indicated that balance of the Affordable
Energy Fund stands at zero dollars. Which
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department or agency of the GN is
responsible for managing this fund? Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is
kind of a funny comment, but it’s not really
funny. If you stay in the bureaucracy long
enough, it all comes back to bite you. Back
in my day as the Deputy of Finance, | think
that responsibility ended up being with
Finance. I don’t know why, but I think it
did. I don’t actually currently know where it
sits, but I think it’s back to QEC. I think it’s
starting to follow me everywhere around.

Quite seriously, the board and | had some
conversations around this, | believe, in the
March meeting. It is something I need to
follow up on because it has obviously sat
dormant for the last five, six, or seven years,
I guess, and we need to do something with
it. Again, it’s something that’s in my work
plan to look at. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you to Mr. Ma for his
response. During the summer, as we had a
summer break, 1 do recall this summer that
there was an announcement in the media
articles, the media press, and newspapers
that Inuit organizations are now eligible for
federal P3 funding. Can you clarify what
discussions have taken place between QEC,
P3 Canada, and other parties regarding P3
funding for such things as new power
plants? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mikkungwak.
That’s another question that I can knock off
my list. Mr. Ma.
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Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I can’t
remember which Member | was responding
to this morning, but we have had some
initial discussions with local Inuit
organizations here. Like I said, it’s probably
not too hard to read between the lines.
We’re in the early days of that. Personally, |
think it’s a great opportunity for us because
the government as a whole has done
business with Inuit organizations in the past.
We certainly know the individuals within
those organizations. We may get to the point
of having them present at the next board
meeting. That’s up to the board to decide in
terms of their agenda.

There are some discussions going on at this
point. I think I would like to have Inuit
partners, in terms of hydro projects here or
elsewhere. Obviously, if we can keep much
of the money in the territory, that’s great for
the territory. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. | thank Mr. Ma once again for
his response. To further look into that and
with that now going to be occurring as an
option for Inuit organizations to be eligible,
and they are now eligible, does that change
your current strategic plan for capital plans?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
he was eavesdropping on our conversation.
It does somewhat because it gives us an
additional option or another way to finance
our capital plans. Depending on how we
structure it, again one of the constraints that
we may or may not have is the GN’s debt
cap. Our debt has to be guaranteed by the
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government. Yes, it definitely changes the
game for us, in terms of how we look at
financing for sure. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. Does this now change also old
lobbies for what for each particular
community? Who then has the final say as
to what capital plan will be occurring in
each particular region, considering that we
have three regions in Nunavut? Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I don’t
think it does. I think it gets back to all the
things that we spoke earlier about today;
which community needs it more, in terms of
growth and demand, the age of the gen. sets,
or liability of the gen. sets, the frequency of
outages, all those different types of criteria.
I think if I was an Inuit organization, hey as
long as I’'m making a buck, I don’t care
whose project I’'m financing. So I don’t
think it changes anything from my
perspective, anyways. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. Akoak.

Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr.
Ma. I’m just going to ask about feasibility
studies. There are studies done in one side
of Nunavut. | don’t see anything on the west
side. Is there anything planned for some sort
of studies to the replacement of power
plants? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Akoak. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I can’t
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think of anything specific at this point in
time, but the way our capital plan is
structured we try to balance the three
regions. Certainly each one of our regional
managers has their say in the process. One
of the areas in the Kitikmeot we are working
on is Cambridge Bay. I think we also have
the power plant replacement in Taloyoak.

If you are referring to alternative energy, |
cannot think of anything off the top of my
head at this point in time, but | can certainly
follow up and provide any additional
information to you after this hearing. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. Akoak.

Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As
you know, they found one of the boats over
in Gjoa Haven so there is going to be a lot
of traffic coming in that area. That might be
something to think about.

We talked about summer students, is that
just in the bigger cities in the offices,
because in the smaller communities we
don’t have anything like that. We do have
power plant operators, can a summer student
work with them during the summer? That is
one of my questions. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
short answer is yes. | will try and give you
some background on that. | may have this
wrong, but I think this year we had two
summer students working in the power
plants, so certainly the opportunity is there.
And let’s face it, our plant operators are not
getting any younger, so there are
opportunities for young people to step in
and have a career in the corporation. So |
would encourage any young individual that
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has an interest in being a plant operator to
approach the plant operators in the
communities next year to try and be a
summer student. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. Akoak.

Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, Mr. Ma for your answer. For the
training of staff, depending on how long the
person works at the community is there a set
time to retrain the person again during their
work life? Is it after five years, or does that
change? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. For our
plant operators we provide annual training
for them. What changed a little bit this year
and we brought all our plant operators in
May, so | think we would rotate, bring in the
plant operator in maybe on May 1, and then
say maybe May 15 we would bring in the
assistant plant operators in. So they were all
here in Igaluit this year.

We have since actually hired, and | am
really proud to have this, we’ve since hired
two people from within our ranks, they’re
beneficiaries, and they now go to the
communities and provide the training to the
plant operators. One of the individuals is
David Veevee, originally from Pangnirtung,
and resides here in Igaluit, he has a
mechanic background. Moses, from Arctic
Bay has also moved down here and
provided some training as well. They were
most recently in Sanikiluag, in Member
Rumbolt’s community, so we are actually
changing it slightly but going on site to
provide the training to our staff. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. Mr. Akoak.
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Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
What happens if a plant worker in a smaller
community wants to move to a bigger
community to step up? Does he have to take
any more courses or would he have to apply
for a job as soon as it opens in a bigger
community? Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In
every one of our communities, it’s set for
probably Cambridge Bay, Igaluit, and
Rankin Inlet, they’re all staffed with
beneficiaries. That’s something we should
talk about. Certainly, if there are openings in
any of these three regional centres,
individually, they have the opportunity to
apply and get a position in another
community.

The plants are all similar but different, so
they probably would have to take some
additional training, depending on how
similar that power plant that they came from
was to the one they’re moving to. The
answer to that varies a little bit depending
on where they’re moving from and where
they’re moving to, but we certainly
encourage our staff to move around if they
can, if they have an interest.

To answer your earlier question a little bit
too about summer students, one of the
things that we’re doing for future
apprentices is that if we see somebody
who’s got a particular skill set that we think
is a good fit within our corporation and they
really want a career with us, we’re going to
identify them as individuals who could
maybe go into an apprenticeship program
and try to support them as best we can.

At this point in time, given our current
roster, we probably don’t have a need for
apprentices, but we’ve always got to be
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thinking down the road a little bit as well.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. I have no more
names on my list, so I’ll continue. I just
have a couple of little final comments.

I apologize to Members who didn’t go for a
break this afternoon. I figured we would be
finishing a little bit early, so I thought |
would forego that.

Like | said, | just do have a couple of more
questions. One of the things that were tabled
last year right around this time was the letter
of expectation from the Minister to the
chairperson of the board. Has that letter
been signed and sent yet this year to date? It
was done at the end of May last year. Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Sorry, |
may have misunderstood your question.
Your question was whether the 2013-14
letter of expectation was responded to by the
previous board?

Chairman: Sorry, my apologies for not
being clear in the 2013-14 ministerial letter
of expectation that was written at the end of
May last year and tabled in September. Has
the 2014-15 letter been submitted yet? Mr.
Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | think
you guys are wearing me down. I’'m not
paying attention very well.

Yes, the 2014-15 letter of expectation has
been sent to the board and | can give you a
date, I think. Just let me find it in my binder
here.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yes, it was dated
July 29, 2014. 1 think I indicated this
morning that when the board is at its retreat
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next week, they will discuss the draft
response with the Minister on the Thursday
in Cambridge Bay. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. | just want
to take one little quick step back to the
Affordable Energy Fund. This fund has been
put in place for quite some time and you’re
saying that there’s a zero balance. Was there
ever a balance or any expenditures made by
that fund in its history? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To my
knowledge, no, and I have been away from
the finance portfolio for a while, but to my
knowledge, no. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that response.
Earlier today, you had also mentioned that
there are four committees or subcommittees
that are made up of the board of directors.
One of the things is that, in 2011, there were
some amendments made to the Nunavut
Housing Corporation Act that required their
board of directors to create an audit
committee. Is there any work in progress or
is that on the radar for the current board of
directors of QEC?

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We
have what we call the finance and audit
committee and that basically fulfills the role
of an audit committee. It is chaired by Mr.
Mullin, who is, | think, the CFO for the
Chesterfield Inlet Holding Corporation
obviously in Chesterfield Inlet. I’'m just
trying to remember the other members who
sit on it. There are three other members |
just can’t recall who they are at this point,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. No, the
names aren’t necessary; I just want the
satisfaction that that committee is doing
work.
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On page 15 of Qulliq Energy Corporation’s
2014 through 2018 corporate plan talks that
the Board of Directors has established a
Board Governance and Policy Committee at
its March 2014 board meeting. It talks that
the role of the committee is update board
governance and operating policies. As of
today, what new policies have been
approved? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My
memory may be wrong, but I think it’s met
once. | have to get back to you on that. |
know we met once and I just can’t
remember what the item was that was
brought forward.

Even prior to the striking of this particular
committee, we have brought forward a
number of policies before the board to
approve. One of the ones that we brought
forward was the duty travel policy; it’s
modelled after the GN’s duty travel policy. I
think in the GN it’s 820-1 under the
Financial Administration Manual. I’'m just
trying to remember what else we brought
forward.

Throughout the course of the last two in-
person board meetings we have brought
forward different policies. One of the
priorities from Minister’s perspective, and
certainly from the new board’s perspective
is policy review and policy development.
We’re hoping that over the course of the
next few months we can bring forward again
more policies to the board for approval.

On the one hand, it would be nice to do it all
at the same time, but at the same time, |
think you have to keep progressing. As we
develop them, I think they’re at a board
ready stage; we’ll bring them to the board
for consideration and approval. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
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Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. In URRC’s
April 28, 2014 report concerning the GRA it
was noted that the QEC had been instructed
by its minister to file a Phase 11 GRA that
provides several cost of service study
options for consideration in its next GRA
application, which is expected to be
submitted in 2018. As of today, what is the
status of the QEC’s work to develop new
cost of service studies options? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
short answer is no progress, and I’ll explain
why. At this point we’re sorting through the
dust that was created through the general
rate application process. The priority also
has been focused on the capital planning and
reporting process. We spent some time
talking about that this afternoon. Our
intention is to start some work on that,
probably next year.

Three years comes up pretty fast and we’ve
got to start working on it. It’s like anything
else, as soon as you finish one part of the
cycle you almost have to start the next cycle
the next day. Even though we haven’t
started, it is the intention to start work on
this as soon as we can. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you. I just have a couple
of more quick questions. Nunavut’s Energy
Secretariat has been bounced around a little
bit since it was devolved from the Qulliq
Energy Corporation. One part of me says
that’s a concern that it’s having trouble
finding a home. Is there talk of bringing it
back into QEC and realizing that
responsibility to explore alternative energy
options, in my opinion, | think back where it
belongs? Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. At the
officials’ level, I would probably say no.
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I’m not sure what discussions may have
happened at the political level. I think it was
most recently moved from my Minister’s
portfolio over to the Department of
Economic Development and Transportation.
Certainly, there is the possibility of some
synergy. Even though we are in separate
locations, so to speak, there is ongoing
discussions and dialogue between our staff
and the folks from the Energy Secretariat.

You’'re right, there probably are some
opportunities to collaborate and do some
things together. We’re doing some of our
Own energy conservation type things.
They’re doing some work on alternative
energy. There are some opportunities that
maybe we can work closer together for sure.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: | appreciate that. | just recently
had some correspondence from somebody
inquiring about some alternative energy
options. For the lack of my understanding of
where to send it, | sent it both your
corporation as well as the Energy
Secretariat, hoping that the appropriate
people would respond.

One final question, | would like to step back
into NNI. I know | have asked a number of
questions on this in House. | have kind of
steered away from QECs involvement with
the NNI Policy, but you talked earlier about
some ongoing discussions on how NNI
could be applicable, and how it should be
applicable to Qulliq Energy Corporation.

You talked with a $20 million, potentially
up to a $4 million impact. | think most of us
are aware that it is very rare that it is a full
21 percent impact from NNI on almost any
contract, as well as, if I understand
correctly, there are caps within the NNI
policy on how much, for example, materials
is capped at $100,000.
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So you can have $2 million worth of
materials, but the NNI impact on that is
$21,000 at its maximum impact. So
personally, | think you are overestimating
the impact.

I will maybe appreciate some input on to
what types of discussions are... we realize
that nobody in Nunavut going to be
providing a $5 million generator that is
made in Norway. There might be other
opportunities, on a smaller scale, involving
more local business, and giving them the
opportunity, as NNI is constructed to do, of
creating employment and economic benefit
to Nunavummiut. Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | am
going to throw some thoughts out at you,
but I don’t want members to hold me to this,
because obviously we are thinking through
things now. It’s a wide open game, which is
nice too because now we can be kind of
creative.

| think the biggest opportunity for Nunavut
businesses to be involved in Inuit-owned
firms is probably through the operations and
maintenance side of the budget. I think in
that regards, probably at his point in time is
to leave it wide open so to speak. We
wouldn’t be any different from a regular GN
department in that regard.

I think we recognized that some of the
particular expertise we need may not be here
in Nunavut but we are also seeing, | call
them an alliance struck between some of the
vendors we use and local businesses, so |
would say that’s a good thing.

I would say on the capital side it’s a bit
more of a challenge, but there are
opportunities as well. 1 will just pick on,
since we talked about the Igaluit power
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plant today. There was a contractor that was
based here in town. Perhaps when rewarding
the contract one of the things you have got
to have is a certain Inuit labour content.
Those are things we need to speak about.

The challenge it gets on the Capital side is
that you have to look at the whole lifecycle
of that particular gen. set you are buying.
So, sometimes vendors may give you a gen.
set and it’s really low capital cost but they
are killing you on the other end, the front
end, because their maintenance cycle may
be more than a similar generator set. When
you add it all up at the end of the day it
actually may turn out more. We’ve got to
think through and work through some of
these things.

One thing [ haven’t mentioned too that we
are doing is not really related to NNI but
maybe related to the capital plan and how
we plan for power plants is that we are
looking at changing perhaps some of our
requirements for different types of gen. sets.
We have had a number of discussions with
different manufacturers so we are expanding
our base.

Maybe that would drive some of the costs
down too because people know that there is
more than one person that they are
competing against, | think it makes
everybody crunch the numbers a little bit
more. Hopefully it will get some cost
savings out of that, and better engines out of
that at the end of the day too. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.

Chairman: Thank you for that response,
Mr. Ma. Just to note, | did have a number of
questions on your capital planning process
but it does sounds like you are making some
headway. So maybe | will leave those until
your next appearance, which we can assume
will occur sometime down the road. At this
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time, 1 would like to invite you to provide
any closing comments Mr. Ma.

Mr. Ma: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | will
try to summarize this as best as I can. First
of all I would like to actually thank the
members for the opportunity to appear. |
think that these types of opportunities are
crucial in terms of communicating, and |
think we’ve all spent a lot of time today
talking about communicating, and it’s
important for us to talk to you about the
good and the bad, and sometimes even the
ugly too.

| think these types of forums are good and |
am sure that there will be lots of
recommendations that will come forward. |
have already made some notes myself in
terms of some of the comments that came
from Members as things that we can follow
up to improve our operations. That part is
important to me.

To me, at the end of the day, even though
we may have differences of opinion
sometimes, we’re all working towards a
common goal and that’s to improve the lives
and well-being of Nunavummiut. I really
want to thank the Members for that. It was a
great opportunity for me to talk about some
things that are happening within the
corporation.

| think all the questions were very
thoughtful and obviously, you spend some
time thinking about your questions. | really
appreciate the fact that you have done that
and given me the opportunity to be here
today. Thank you again, Mr. Chairman and
all Members. Thank you.

Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Ma. I’'m going
to make my closing comments quite short
and probably fairly sweet.
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I want to thank you for taking the time to
appear before this Committee. | know that
you didn’t really have much choice in the
matter, but at the same time, like | had
stated previously, this is the first time QEC
has appeared a committee of this nature and
| do know that a lot of my Committee
Members did put a lot of work and a lot of
research and, with the assistance of our
research staff that we have at the legislature,
came up with some really good lines of
questioning, in my opinion. As you noted in
your comments, you agree.

I think there’s a lot of passion and we all
realize the impact that power rates have on
our constituents and ourselves all across the
territory. 1 would just like to encourage any
cost-saving measures that you can explore,
please do so. If you can streamline
processes, it sounds like you’re making
some progress with it.

| also want to thank the interpreters. Mr. Ma
does speak a little bit fast sometimes, so I’'m
sure they’re kept very busy up there.

>>| aughter

Mr. Ma: Sorry.

Chairman: But | want to thank everybody
for their participation in this hearing and just
wish everyone all the best. Thank you very
much.

>>Committee adjourned at 15:17
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